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Directors’ Profile

ESEN

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 62, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 30 years
of experience in international trading and investment in the
Mainland China.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 42, is Managing Director of the
Company since 2009. Mr. Shum graduated from the University
of Saskatchewan with a degree in Bachelor of Arts, majoring in
Economics. Prior to joining the Company in 2004, Mr. Shum has
pursued a career in finance and accountancy in an international
accounting firm. He is the son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Cen Ziniu, aged 52, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
and has been involved in trading businesses in Hong Kong
and the Mainland China, holding senior managerial positions.
Mr. Cen has extensive experience in dealership management,
business formation and marketing. He is responsible for market
development of the Group and overseas operations. He is a
cousin of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 69, has been independent
non-executive director since August 2001. Mr. Cheung is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong Kong Polytechnic)
with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr. Cheung has over 30
years of experience in account, finance and investment banking
profession specializing in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and
acquisition and corporate restructuring before working with
publicly listed companies undertaking corporate management,
planning and strategies development functions. Mr. Cheung is
an independent non-executive director of Great Harvest Maeta
Group Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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ESEN

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 62, has been independent
non-executive director since March 2006. Mr. Chan is a holder
of a Master of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield
Institute of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional
engineer in Hong Kong and the U.K. Mr. Chan is graduated with
First Class Honours in mechanical engineering and the recipient
of the U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding
Project Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan
has taken up key management positions in engineering and
technology businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping
equipment and control systems, mini-piling, and software and
hardware engineering businesses.

Dr. Xu Mingshe, aged 65, was accredited a doctor’s degree
in economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and has
over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field. Since
1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of position in the
top management level in banking sector in the Mainland China,
and has been well connected in the finance and corporate
sectors both in the Mainland China and overseas. Dr. Xu’s
expertise includes public listings, project financing, syndicated
loan, debt restructuring and merge and acquisition. He has
taken part in a considerable number of overseas listing of
Chinese enterprises and other major fund raising exercises. Dr.
Xu was appointed as independent non-executive director of the
Company on 1 July, 2006.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present the report on the audited results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to the shareholders.

The year of 2020 was an extraordinary year with coronavirus
pandemic devastating the whole world and countries shutting
down their borders. Amid such dire circumstances, oil prices
hit violent turbulences and slid to a historical low during the
first half of the year. When an oil trader in Singapore with a
mega business scale was caught in a financial crisis in April, the
repercussion disrupted operations across the industry, eventually
prompting banks to adopt a very conservative approach towards
the oil product industry. Despite the decent track record with
zero default history over the past decade or so the Group, in
the midst of these adverse factors, was unfortunately struck by
abrupt and catastrophic credit freeze and early recalls of loans
by six banks without any fore warning. Such actions had created
a ripple effect spreading to all off shore lending banks having
business relationship with the Group, until we were made to
suffer from an extensive credit freeze by all banks. In response
to this, as Chairman of the Company | have written to the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority asking for urgent action, calling on the
authority to provide our much needed assistance. At this stage,
we are conducting negotiations with bank representatives while
our endeavor to put into effect a debt restructuring program is
underway.

The Group is a business entity which owns not only a significant
portfolio of assets, but also exceptionally rare deepwater
multifunctional oil and gas terminals. Over the past decade or so,
by achieving a vertical integration on our operations chain, we
lowered our operating costs and invested abundant resources
to improve our vertical operations chain, including investments
and work-in-progress in a number of projects. These should
have resulted in a comprehensive and finely adjusted business
infrastructure. Nonetheless, the extensive destructive credit
freeze had taken its toll on the Group, causing a rupture in the
cash chain, where we were given no other choice but to suspend
our investments in progress. Given the impracticality of engaging
in its commodity business with the existing cash reserves, the
Group has already scaled down its business volume in an orderly
manner, and actively proceeded with the sale and leasing of
its vessels. When the monthly turnover volume of our terminals
has diminished from no less than 10 vessels to the current 2
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

vessels, the excess turnover capacity has been sub-leased to an
independent third party company in China so that addition rental
income can be generated to subsidize our operating costs. We
ask for the shareholders’ understanding that, as a general rule
there is no chance of survival for an enterprise in an extensive
credit freeze situation such as that facing the Group. For such,
we as a group can only pin our hopes on pending mergers
with, or acquisitions of appropiate parts of our business by our
counterparts in the same industry. In this regard, we are now in
negotiation with a few large corporations, in which we have seen
a positive progress for the Group. Without any further negative
impact, the Group will be given a life-changing opportunity to
start new and fresh. Still, whether or not this opportunity will
present itself depends on how well the Group’s restructuring
program pans out with the banks. In the Management Discussion
and Analysis section in this annual report, the extent of impact
of such credit freeze against the Group by the banks and
the financial loss incurred is being set out for shareholders’
information.

Looking back at the last 20 years, our Company has evolved
from a bottled LPG seller in 2nd 3rd tier cities in China to a
multinational establishment, with annual turnovers in LPG in
par with or better than other top achievers in our country. At
this critical moment, our Company will remain committed to
the endeavouring spirit we have all this time, to us defeat is not
an option. We will do our utmost to conserve and protect our
core strength, to maintain the goodwill and faith we have been
given in the industry, and to strive for the rebirth of our Group.
| hereby take the opportunity to express on behalf of the Board
our sincerest appreciation to our staff who have steadfastly kept
to their posts, and have given to the Group their undeterred
dedication in such challenging times throughout the year of
2020.

Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

28 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE MR DM

1.

Market Overview

1.1

International crude oil market

The first half of 2020 was braced for a dramatic
turbulence in oil prices. Having initially priced at
about US$65 per barrel in early 2020, Brent crude
oil began its down trend since mid-February, with
an even sharper decline in March. Such price, in a
mere of two months, dived from around US$60 per
barrel to a low of about US$15 per barrel in mid-
April, right before its gradual pick up to US$40 per
barrel in mid-May. In the second half of the year, the
price gradually and steadily recovered, bouncing back
US$51 per barrel at the end of the year. The volatility
in price was mainly due to the hit that the global
economy had taken during the first half of 2020 as a
result of the outbreak of the 2019 novel coronavirus
pandemic (“COVID-19”), where most economic
activities had been halted. When there already
existed an oversupply of energy products (such as
oil products), oil prices saw a steep dip since March
facing oil producing countries’ adamant attitude
towards output cuts while weathering the hit from
the pandemic. On 20 April, the US crude oil index
was pushed to record lows of negative US$37.63 per
barrel. The global oil crash had exerted a substantial
negative impact on the energy market, where many
top-notch oil companies were thrown into the plight
of liquidity issues or losses on derivative contracts as
a consequence of the abrupt oil price collapse. Amid
this crisis, Singapore’s Hin Leong Trading (Pte.) Ltd.,
as one of the many victims within the industry, had
filed for bankruptcy in April 2020. In response to the
global crisis, many banks had put forward the choice
of tightening the credit facilities granted to energy
businesses. Their precipitous decision had eventually
left many industry players scrambling to stay afloat
when losing the support on their working capital, with
our group being no exception. Despite the good track
record in meeting contractual obligations without any
defaults over the past decade or so, the Group had
been thrown into a difficult position facing large-scale
or early recalls of loans by certain banks, resulting
into a serious liquidity mismatch. Since May, the
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1.2

recalls of loans by banks did not only cause ripples
of negative impact, but also were a domino effect
that had caused the extreme delay amid the Group’s
collection of trade receivables. Some clients even
made different excuses to avoid repayment, which
had given the Group no other choice but to file a
lawsuit. Even worse, there were also instances of
unlawful interruptions of certain banks to our clients,
eventually forcing the Group to take the loan disputes
of over US$10 million to the court for closure. For
such, the Group reluctantly put its investment plans
on hold, causing a huge economic loss. Following the
incidents of loan recalls by the banks, the confidence
of the banking industry for our industry had been
shattered by the impact of the oil price plunge, so had
their support to us, albeit the rebound in oil prices. As
a result, the industry players, with NewOcean being
no exception, had failed to secure a constant liquidity
flow, being doomed to misery.

The exchange rate of Renminbi

During 2020, the exchange rate of Renminbi against
the US dollar lingered between 6.46 to 7.15; yet,
such fluctuation range had never been evident. When
the market had most likely adapted to the tug-of-
war between China and the United States, along
with China’s remarkable feat in keeping COVID-19
under control as compared to other countries (such
as the United States) which are still reeling from the
pandemic outbreak and sluggish economy, Renminbi
had seen particularly strong growth in the second
half of the year, with its exchange rate against the US
dollar rising from 7.07 in mid-year, to a high of 6.46
at the end of the year. Such appreciation in Renminbi
had brought a positive impact on the financial position
of the Group during the year.

1.2
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1.3 HERATRARTS

1.3 The oil and gas consumer market in the Mainland

China

The first half year of 2020 did not change for China
as the country still suffered from the impact of
COVID-19, as well as the acts of hostilities of the
United States and other western countries. Albeit the
fierce efforts of the Chinese government in thriving
its domestic demand, China market, including the
Guangdong Province (i.e., the Group’s major market
in the Mainland China), had seen diminishing industrial
outputs dragged by COVID-19. It is expected that
China may still suffer an economic slowdown in the
months ahead. During 2020, the annual demand for
liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) for re-export usages
remained stable, but that of industrial usages had
become weaker as a result of COVID-19; likewise,
the vehicle-related demand for LPG had been on
an ongoing downtrend, owing to the challenges not
only thrown by COVID-19, but also the existence
of liquefied natural gas and electric power, as well
as the market structural changes across the taxi
industry. In the long run, the demand for oil products
and LPG in the Mainland China may only set for a
low-to-moderate growth. With the backdrop of the
successive emergence of new energies such as
natural gas (“NG”), electric power or even hydrogen
energy onto the market, coupled with the roll-out of
environmental protection policies by the government
for the promotion of other eco-friendly new energies
over the recent years, the demand for traditional
energies, including oil products and LPG, in the
Mainland China is expected to brace for some hit.
Amid such conditions, the Group will strive to tap
into new domestic and international markets while
consolidating its existing presence in the current
consumer market.
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Basic situation of the Group during 2020

Faced with the challenging headwinds of a series of black
swan events, for instance, the outbreak of COVID-19,
the global oil crash, the stand-off between China and the
United States and bank runs, our operating environment
had been exceptionally undesirable over the first half of
2020, over HK$3.7 billion loss was recorded for the year,
the main reasons included: i) in times of market turmoil,
some of our key competitors in the oil products market had
sold large lots of oil products at bargain prices for cashing
in during March and April. Under the operating model of
the Group, it had been a tough decision to the Group to
reluctantly follow suit and slash prices under the pressure
of its mounting inventories over the successive months,
resulting into a steep dive in the Group’s overall gross
profits in its energy products. Although gross profits for
the second half of the year had returned to normal levels,
there was still resistance against them to bounce back to
the previous high, the gross profit margin dropped to 1.0%
(2019: 6.8%); ii) furthermore, the global oil crash, coupled
with banks’ tightening policies on lending, altogether had
created a market sentiment that affected some clients of
our oil products, causing them to delay the repayment of
trade or other receivables to a significant extent; which
in return, an allowance for impairment loss as of about
HK$1.14 billion had been made. In order to protect our
Group from loss, our management will take proactive
approach to negotiate with customers for repayment
arrangement and take all required legal action to recover
the outstanding amounts. One of the impairment losses
of approximately HK$340 million is related to a personal
loan receivable, the management is currently working
on a potential asset (i.e. an iron ore manufacturing plant
in Malaysia) that can be provided by the borrower as
pledged asset, the progress was delayed by Covid-19, the
management will urge to complete the pledge arrangement
so that to reduce the credit risk of the Group; iii) with the
backdrop of the diminishing demand for electronic parts (IC)
in the domestic market, due to the impact of Covid-19, the
sales of certain IC models had been delayed and became
outdated, thus those needed to be sold at low prices to
stimulate sales, resulting into an allowance for inventories
of approximately HK$349 million; iv) during the year, more
than ten monohull oil tankers of the Group had been written
off due to issues related to the specifications of oil tankers
in the Mainland China; and in the meantime, the Group had
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shut down a number of auto-gas refueling stations because
of the decreasing demand, altogether resulting into a loss
of approximately HK$120 million for the disposition of the
above fixed assets; v) over the recent years, the changing
government policies in the Mainland China had resulted into
the sharp decline in both the volume of and the demand
for auto-gas refueling in Guangzhou; hence, the Group
had made an allowance for impairment in respect of its
goodwill of business and intangible assets of approximately
HK$344 million; vi) facing the shrinkage in liquidity due to
the lack of support to its business operations from most
banks, the Group felt the needs to reallocate its resources,
and eventually reached the decision to scale down both its
marine and on-land bunkering businesses; and hence, an
allowance for impairment in respect of the goodwill in this
regard of approximately HK$422 million had been made
at the end of the year; vii) since our Group is under debt
restructuring and our resources become tight, this has
forced our Group to put aside our investments in relation to
refinery plant in Malaysia and hydrogen manufacturing plant
in the PRC. Given that the travel restrictions and quarantine
policies have yet be lifted, the management is unable to
meet and discuss with relevant authorities like Malaysia
government to work out alternative plan. Up to the reporting
date, there are still plenty of uncertainties involved, the
management decided to make full provision of HK$788
million. Once COVID-19 subsides, the management will
proactively discuss with Malaysia government to work out
a solution and further look for suitable investment partners
to propel the construction of the refinery projects so that
the investment cost paid, various licenses and the 10 years
tax exemptions obtained by the Group will not be wasted.
The management will do the same for the investment in
hydrogen manufacturing plant in the PRC and endeavour
to find ways to recovery the invested amount. Due to the
above factors, as well as most of those one-off impairment
allowances, the Group record a loss of approximately
HK$3.72 billion during the year.

Given the recorded net loss for the year as of 2020, the
Group was unable to fulfii some bank covenants relating
to certain bank loans, thus the non-current portion of
these bank borrowings, together with other bank loans
due to cross-default, had been reclassified, and were
presented as current portion of bank borrowings in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Subsequent
to the reclassification, the net current assets of the Group
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EREEHEZHT7.88 BT 2EE - B
BEEESGERIFAER  TBHRERAD
BREAATHR  A5EE=TKRE
FoOFERERERBEFZEEERE T
FRBEBIBORE - BANEMIRE T
FAEEENSREBKERKE - ER
A FEZRREBO —RERERE &
B2 FRSEIENI7.2EBT -

ERAEEHE2020F 2 FHBFE
B AKEEEBRTRE TRITERE
FAR R IRTTRA) - xFRITHERAIE
MmN BB DA B B At (R 52 XE 498 BV IR
TEREEHDE  AREE PR
RPN RIRITERRBE D - EX D
iR ARENRBEEFBRN/137



Annual Report 2020 —Z=ZFFH{ | 13

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE 2 WmR DM

amounted to approximately HK$1.37 billion. In addition,
due to the bankruptcy of Hin Leong Trading (Pte.) Ltd.
and the slump in global oil prices during the first half
year of 2020, many banks had extended requests to the
Group in relation to stop using or limitation on letters of
credit and other short-term credits. In order to ease the
liquidity pressure and improve the financial position of the
Group, our directors had taken the proactive approach
to implement a range of measures, including opening
negotiations with banks for the discussion of arrangements
and the conclusion of agreement on debt restructuring. We
also took the initiative to file the application to the court for
convening meeting of debt restructuring for the cognizance
of the restructuring proposal. The measures adopted by
the Group and their respective background have been
disclosed in details in Note 1A of the consolidated financial
statements.

2.1 Operating Income

During 2020, the Group had achieved a total
revenue of approximately HK$19,179,843,000
(among which, the revenue of energy products was
approximately HK$17,407,396,000, contributing
around 90.76% of the total revenue), representing
a dip of around 30.99% as compared to that of
approximately HK$27,791,913,000 (among which,
the revenue of energy products was approximately
HK$26,809,177,000, contributing around 96.46% of
the total revenue of the year) in last year. During the
year, the sales volume of energy products had seen
a substantial decrease of approximately 1,829,000
tonnes as compared to that of last year. Coupled
with the substantial price slides in oil and gas during
March and April, the average prices of such over the
year had been lower than those of last year, resulting
into an approximately 31% decline in the annual
revenue as compared to that of last year.

BT e o BREEEBS(LE)AE
R A A% EE A K 2020 FF £ ¥ F 2 BROm
BREK FEZRTBREZZRTEEE
IFSRFIFERERAEREMEHBEE -
ABRBTRBESE N RREETHR
Mo AEBERDEEERICTREE
PIEEIRITHETER UL U ERE
MENHE - REBMEESRBFERE
BEHESHUBREATR - REBER
BHESEBEEEEESENGEEVBRE
PIFE 1A FF AR EE o
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2.2 Gross profits 2.2

During the year, the total gross profits of the Group
were approximately HK$195,638,000, representing an
evident dip as compared with that of approximately
HK$1,882,257,000 in the last year. The following is
the analysis of gross profits by business segments:

Gross profits/gross margin of

the year in 2020

EFH

F A& BEEEF %195,638,000
BT EEH EF R ERNY
1,882,257,0007& 7T * A 08 ¥ -
T REBYBERDN

Gross profits/gross margin of
the year in 2019

2020 2 EF EFIE

LPG LPG HK$746,455,000/11.65%
746,455,000 &7, 11.65%

Oil products il HK$224,133,000/2.04%
224,133,000 7%, 2.04%

Electronics EF HK$(637,954,000)/(38.59%)
(637,954,000) #&7T " (38.59%)

Sales of properties MEHE (H5e) HK$(136,996,000)/(114.64%)
(Dongguan) (136,996,000) T (114.64%)
Total Bt HK$195,638,000/1.02%

195,638,000 &I, 1.02%

Our gross margin of LPG business remained above
10%; however, due to the fact that our major
competitors had turned to cut-throat tactics to sell
oil products in large lots at low prices for cashing in
during March and April, the Group reluctantly had
to follow suit to sell products below costs for the
depletion of stock in order to avoid more onerous
impairment risks as a result of the ongoing oil price
slump. As a result, March and April had recorded a
substantial amount of negative gross profits in our
marine bunkering business. Riding on the market
restoration during the second half of the year, our
gross profits had bounced back to normal levels;
however, our average gross profits for the year in
overall had been dragged down to 2.04% (2019:
4.40%). At the beginning of year, it was once part of
the Group’s expectation that the order volume of its
electronic parts (such as IC) may rise correspondingly
under the Chinese government’s relentless push
for driving its domestic demand; nevertheless, the

2019 2 FER /M X

HK$953,030,000/12.67%
953,030,000/ 7T, 12.67%
HK$848,233,000/4.40%
848,233,00078 7T, 4.40%
HK$80,994,000/8.24%
80,994,000/ 7T,8.24%
Nil

=
HK$1,882,257,000/6.77%
1,882,257,0007% 7T,/ 6.77%

LPGEFEFMEMAKRFL10%
KE EBhBREFEEERFYETF
EIZE4ARUEREBA - EWHR
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global outbreak of COVID-19 had brutally dampened
the manufacturing industry in general to everyone'’s
surprise, thus slashing the demands for parts. In
response to the situation, the Group had launched
price cuts for the electronic parts that it previously
ordered during the second and third quarters to cash
in. Regrettably, the sales of such had not been at
its best, thus leading to an allowance for inventories
of approximately HK$349,000,000 at the end of
the year. During the year, our electronics business
in overall had recorded gross loss of approximately
HK$637,954,000 and a gross margin of negative
38.59%. During the year, the sales of properties
were the real estate project that we had previously
invested in located in Dongguan. Due to the rise in
costs resulting from the cost overruns associated with
the subsequent stages of the construction, gross loss
were recorded. Given the uncertain economic outlook
and insufficient working capital, the Group had already
reviewed its existing business risks and coordinated
resource reallocation, and eventually came to the
decision of scaling down the business volumes of
both its oil products and electronic businesses and
put aside various investment projects such as refinery
plant in Malaysia.

Net loss and profits and basic loss and profit per
share

The loss for the year attributable to the owners
of the Company was recorded as approximately
HK$3,558,546,000, as compared to the profit of
approximately HK$642,175,000 as recorded by the
Group last year. Such loss was mainly due to the
decline in gross profits, the allowances for inventories,
trade receivables and other receivables, impairment
for deposits paid for various investment projects, as
well as the allowances for impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets, which have been disclosed
in details in the “Basic situation of the Group during
2020” in Note 2.

Throughout the year of 2020, the Group did not
engage in any fund-raising activities in relation to
its shares. As of 31 December 2020, the weighted
average number of the Company’s issued ordinary
shares was 1,468,124,216 shares, and the basic loss
per share for the year was around HK$2.42.
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2.6

Net exchange gain and loss

As of 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a net
exchange gain of approximately HK$162,923,000
thanks to the appreciation in RMB, as compared
to the net exchange loss of approximately
HK$49,330,000 of last year.

Changes in fair values of derivative financial
instruments

Over the recent years, the ongoing improvement in
the sales volume of oil products had determined the
considerable amoumt of inventories of the Group.
For mitigating any negative impacts on the Group’s
interests caused by factors such as price fluctuations
and global economic uncertainties, the Group will
enter into several derivative contracts for its oil
products or LPG commodities for the purpose of
hedging, all being done in response to its product
inventory levels (if any holding over to next month)
or any requests from individual clients on fixed price
purchases with forward contract for the sake of
lowering the risks of price volatility of its products.
Nonetheless, the unforeseen global oil crash had
led to steep dip in the prices of oil products within
just a glimpse of time. During the year, the loss from
derivative contracts amounted to approximately
HK$125 million.

Finance costs

As a result of the price slumps of oil products and
LPG during the year, coupled with the global roll-
out of rate cut since the second half of 2019 and
the decrease in bank loans on average throughout
the year, our finance costs were down to around
HK$282,706,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 21.14% as compared with that of
approximately HK$358,485,000 last year.

2.4

2.5

2.6

BRERRG
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2.8

Net current assets

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had net current
assets amounting to around HK$1,367,826,000 and
a current ratio of about 118.81%, representing a dip
of approximately HK$3,679,185,000 in its net current
assets, as compared to the net current assets of
about HK$5,047,011,000 (current ratio: 170.63%)
as of 31 December 2019. Such decline was mainly
due to the non-current bank borrowings having
classified as current liabilities, as well as the drop in
current assets as a result of the allowances for trade
receivables, other receivables and inventories.

Net cash flow incurred by the operating activities

As of 31 December 2020, a net cash inflow of
approximately HK$400 million had been incurred by
our operating activities; contrastingly, our investing
and financing activities had recorded a net cash
outflow of approximately HK$942 million and HK$731
million respectively, altogether contributing to the
decrease of approximately HK$1.4 billion in our
cash and cash equivalents at the end of December.
The main cash outflow incurred by investing
activities included a short-term borrowing to an
independent third party amounting to approximately
HK$417 million, as well as the investments in the
construction of hydrogen refueling plants amounting
to approximately HK$170 million and in the property
project in Zhuhai, whereas the majority of cash
outflow incurred by financing activities was from the
repayment of bank borrowings.

2.7

2.8
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Performance review

During the year, the Group continued to focus its efforts
on its energy products business. In 2020, the Group
achieved a total sales volume of approximately 5,636,000
tonnes, among which, the sales volume of LPG was around
1,712,000 tonnes, which were comparable to that of last
year. On the other hand, the sales volume of oil products
of the year had reached 3,924,000 tonnes, representing
a sharp fall of around 30% as compared to that of last
year, which was mainly due to the fact that the Group was
low in funds to continue the operations of its oil products
business.

LPG#EE=
(R FREEEN%)

Sales volume of LPG
(percentage contributed to the
total sales volume of the year)

HmiEEE
(EEFRIHEEN %)

Sales volume of oil products
(percentage contributed to the
total sales volume of the year)

Total sales volume BIHES

3.1 LPG business

Throughout the year, the Group realized a sales
volume of approximately 1,712,000 tonnes for
LPG, representing a decrease of around 7.36% as
compared with approximately 1,848,000 tonnes
of last year. The sales volume contributed by
wholesalers and industrial customers had shrunk due
to COVID-19, whereas that of LPG for civilian usage
had also fallen given the emergence of new energies
such as electric power and LNG energy.

HiR[O

FA EEEBEFRINEREE
m ¥ 7% 20204 £ 13 495,636,000
MRBHESE  EFRLPGHIEEELN
A1,712,0008 - M WHEEEN A
3,924,000 + b ¥ KX FLPGHHE =
REHER - BhRmESAR®K=K - =
DHRALBTHFREAZHGESHE

AR A 3T

Full year 2020
2020 E 25

1,712,000 tonnes
(30.38%)
1,712,000 i
(30.38%)
3,924,000 tonnes
(69.62%)
3,924,000 i
(69.62%)
5,636,000 tonnes
(100.00%)
5,636,000 liifi
(100.00%)

3.1 LPGE¥H

Full year 2019
2019 F 24

1,848,000 tonnes
(24.76%)
1,848,000 M&
(24.76%)
5,617,000 tonnes
(75.24%)
5,617,000 &
(75.24%)
7,465,000 tonnes
(100.00%)
7,465,000 &
(100.00%)
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During the year, the LPG business recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$6.40 billion, representing a
decline of approximately 14.89% as compared with
that of nearly HK$7.52 billion of last year, which was
mainly due to the drop in sales volume, as well as the
diminishing average price of LPG as a result of the
global oil crash.

The Group had realized gross profits of approximately
HK$746 million over the year, representing a
dip of nearly 21.72% as compared with that of
approximately HK$953 million of last year. Dragged
by the oil price crash, LPG prices had seen a fall;
however, no corresponding immediate downward
adjustments in selling prices had been seen in end-
user markets, for instance, the sales of bottled LPG.
During the year, the average gross margin of LPG
business was approximately 11.65%, representing
a mild drop as compared to that of approximately
12.67% of last year.

Sales

Sales category

HERN

Wholesalers BLEER
End-users B AP
Total FEE

Impacted by COVID-19, the domestic demand had
seen a downturn over the year, whereas the business
of LPG for civilian usage and industrial customers had
also correspondingly decreased, with the shrinkage
in the volume of auto-gas refueling being relatively
more prominent. In Guangzhou, the LPG auto-gas
refueling market target buses and taxis as its core
customers. Adhering to the government policies, all
of the buses were required to switch to be running on
liquefied natural gas or electric power, resulting into a
drastic decrease in the number of LPG fueled buses,

Full year 2020
20202

1,012,200 tonnes

Annual Report 2020 —Z=ZTFFf

LPGEKEF B H64.0E BT
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801,000 tonnes

1,012,200 i 801,000 W&
699,800 tonnes 1,047,000 tonnes
699,800 A 1,047,000 g
1,712,000 tonnes 1,848,000 tonnes
1,712,000 li§ 1,848,000 WA
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thus directly leading to a slash in LPG demand.
On the other hand, the taxi industry was prone to
serious underutilization as affected by the improper
on-line car hiring services and COVID-19. In the
circumstance that the demand for LPG from buses
and taxies both declined due to different grounds, the
ongoing shrinkage in the business volume of auto-
gas refueling business had become unavoidable.
During the year, there had been a number of refueling
stations in Guangzhou being shut down, resulting
into an allowance for impairment in respect of the
goodwill and intangible assets having incurred at the
acquisition of auto-gas refueling stations some years
ago. Given the sluggish LPG sales in the Mainland
China, the Group had devoted more wholesaling
efforts in order to make up for the deficiency in sales
to its end-users. It is part of the Group’s belief that
the sales volume contributed by its end-users will rise
again following the subsidence of COVID-19.

Oil products business

Throughout the year of 2020, the Group achieved a
total sales volume of approximately 3,924,000 tonnes
of ail products in Hong Kong, the Mainland China and
Singapore, representing a decline of around 30.14%
as compared with approximately 5,617,000 tonnes
last year.

Qur oil products business recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$11.002 billion throughout the year,
representing a contraction of approximately 42.97%
as compared to that of nearly HK$19.29 billion of last
year, which was mainly due to the decreases in the
average prices of oil products and sales volumes. The
gross margins of oil products had narrowed to 2.04%
(2019: 4.40%). A detailed analysis on the reasons
for such is explained in the paragraph of “2.2 Gross
profits”.

3.2

R LPGHI T K & » sHI2E™
BRIR B FF LR T IR MR R
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Sales

Sales category

SEHA

Hong Kong/Singapore T8 WHinig
Oil products JBan

China hE

Oil products B on

Total Eod

The impact of COVID-19 on global shipping
businesses, coupled with the disequilibrium between
the supply and the demand for oil products,
altogether contributed to the diminishing sales volume
in the overseas markets; in addition, with the Group’s
decision of its gradual withdrawal of resources
invested in the oil products business since mid-year
of last year, the sales volume of this business had
entailed a corresponding reduction. Nonetheless,
along with the recovery in oil products transactions
amid the abatement of COVID-19 after March, the
Group had reinforced its domestic trading of oil
products to secure solid sales volume.

Electronic business

Throughout the year, the electronics business
recorded a revenue amounting to approximately
HK$1,652,947,000 in total, that was a surge as
compared to around HK$982,736,000 of last year.
To be in line with the Group’s expectation on the rise
in domestic demand at the beginning of the year, our
order quantities had been lifted; however, because of
the unpredicted advent of COVID-19, demands for our
products both in the Mainland China and Southeast
Asia had seen a drawback. For mitigating the risks
associated with inventories, the Group had launched
price cuts in its inventory sell-off, resulting into the
recorded negative gross profits of approximately
HK$640 million.

Full year 2020
2020 25

2,117,000 tonnes
2,117,000 6§

1,807,000 tonnes
1,807,000 Hif

3,924,000 tonnes
3,924,000 i
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3.4 HMEX

3.4 Other businesses

Hydrogen and NG auto-gas refueling station
business — Despite the establishment of the
hydrogen station in Guangzhou last year, the demand
for hydrogen as an automobile power remained
limited; however, with the vigorous efforts made by
the government in promoting eco-friendly energies,
the market demand for such is expected to soar in the
future. In addition, the Group had also kick-started its
plan to establish hydrogen refueling plants, however
since the banks stopped supporting our Group, the
Group was lack of working capital and decided to
discuss with the investment partner to put aside this
project. The NG business is still under development at
present. We have screened our existing projects, and
undertaken initiatives to axe projects which only have
a slim chance of making profits to our Group. We will
instead focus on devoting resources to nurture other
potential projects, for instance, shifting our attention
from our current cooperative NG projects with logistic
companies, to the construction of refueling stations
for striving for better investment returns.

Real estate business — Since the third quarter of
2019, the Group had launched sales of Block A and
B of the apartment property located in Zhuhai, where
more than 30 apartments had been successfully
sold. In early 2020, a potential buyer had made
an offer to acquire the entire Block B and E (office
building); nonetheless, the social movements in Hong
Kong later, coupled with the advent of COVID-19,
altogether had delayed the sales plan. Following the
abatement of the pandemic, the Group will set for
redeploying its marketing strategies and models in
hope of maximizing the profits netted from the sale of
such prime property.
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Business Outlook

(Such outlook is based upon the success of the Group
in proceeding with its debt restructuring and the
plans will also be adopted to reflect the developing
financial environments of the Group)

Over the past years, the Southern China region has always
been the major markets of the Group; nevertheless, the
fierce domestic competitions, as well as the ongoing trade
repression by the United States, had altogether casted a
shadow across the Chinese market, which may possibly
deteriorate our operating environment. While there may be
practical difficulties in avoiding such market risks, setting
footholds in much more diversified markets can be one of
the effective solutions to the Group.

In view of these, the Group laid out its development
blueprint as early as in 2017, that was to expand its
overseas businesses in a proactive manner. We will
continue to adopt the same operating strategies to drive
our developments with the use of our end-user markets,
SO as to ensure an exponential growth in our business
volume. In the meantime, we are reviewing the Group’s
industry structure and operating model for the continuous
improvements in the coordination between our industry
and logistics chains. It is expected that such measures
will enhance our operating efficiency and further lower our
operating costs.

Given the global oil crash and a number of unfavorable
factors for business operations during the first half of 2020,
the future remains uncertain. At present, the Group is
reviewing its development strategies, and in the meantime,
it is committed to deploy its limited resources into its core
businesses.
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LPG business — The retail markets located in the
Southern China region (including Macau and Hong Kong)
will remain as the core of our business.

(1) While exploring opportunities for the further expansion
in the end-user markets for our bottled LPG, we will
strengthen our management of distributors, and give
them stronger backing for the improvements of our
sales volume, and thus our profitability.

(2)  We are actively seeking industrial users of LPG. When
the emergence of new energies has already affected
our business of auto-gas refueling for civilian usage,
the volume of LPG for industrial usage skyrockets
on a year-on-year basis, although the outbreak of
COVID-19 had still pushed down the demand for such
during the first half of 2020. The Group believes that
such impact would only be temporary, thus our sales
team in the Mainland China will step up their efforts to
seek new industrial clients.

(3) As to the expansion of our business to the overseas
markets, we have begun wholesaling LPG to Africa
two years ago. At present, we are in the search of
suitable land parcels in Africa for the construction of
LPG terminal gas plants and bottling plants. We aim
to tap into the local end-user markets as soon as
possible, which are expected to yield healthy return
on capital.

Oil products business — Being all set for the significant
scale-down of our oil products business, we are committed
to focusing not only on the sales of products with high
gross profits, but also on lowering our costs. When the
costs of refueling business in Hong Kong are relatively
high, the Group will step up its efforts to sell wholesale to
our clients who are distributors, and to lease its existing
oil tankers to wholesalers or list them for sale. As to
our business in Singapore, certain extent of its marine
bunkering business will remain, with oil products of
relatively stable gross profits and high sulphur fuel oil being
the key focus of the business. Meanwhile, the Group will
take the occupancy of a small portion of the total leased
capacity of 300,000 tonnes of floating storage unit, while
the remaining part will be leased to third parties for cost
saving purposes.
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Electronic business — The Group recorded losses in this
project amid the volatility in the market, thus the resources
being invested in this business are expected to see
significant decline.

New energy business — With the promotion of eco-
friendly energies by the Chinese government, the Group will
take its initiative to grow its hydrogen business, but will not
allocate too much resources to this business line. Given the
NG market in Guangdong is not ripe enough, the Group
is only investing limited resources in the planning and
construction of sales network at this stage.

Improvement on our industry chain — Vertical
integration will be conducted.

(1)  Once COVID-19 subsides, the Group will look for
suitable investment partners to propel the proposed
construction project of a refinery in Malaysia. We
are confident that the products manufactured by
the refinery upon its completion will contribute a
significant part of the Group’s annual oil and gas
sales volume. From then, the Group’s oil and gas
business will be able to progress from being passively
dependent on the supply from external sources, to be
more genuinely self-sufficient.

(2) The completion of such vertical integration will enable
the Group to reach its goal of bettering controls over
costs under a low-risk and cost-saving ecosystem;
and in the meantime, profoundly enhancing the
Group’s bargaining power on the international
markets. It will also broaden our procurement
channels, thus creating more sales opportunities to
the Group.

We firmly believe that, the unceasing expansion of our end-
user sales network in the Southern China region, along with
the active growth of our sales markets overseas, as well
as the vertical integration of our supply chain, are the three
cornerstone attributes for the Group to secure a sustainable
growth in business and an improvement in its profitability in
a more effective way.
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Responses from the Directors regarding the
disclaimer of opinion set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December
2020

Disclaimer of opinion by the Auditor and the management
position

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (the “Auditor”), the independent
auditor of the Company, stated in the Independent Auditor’s
Report (the “Independent Auditor’s Report”) contained in the
2020 Annual Report that they do not express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group due to the
multiple uncertainties relating to going concern. Please refer to
“Independent Auditor’s Report” for details.

After considering the measures taken to mitigate liquidity burden
on the Group, to maintain its operations, and to improve its
financial situation as disclosed in Note 1A to the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors are of the opinion that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the next twelve months
from 31 December 2020. Accordingly, the Directors are of the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Group on a going concern basis. Nevertheless,
as stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report, the Auditor was
not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion. Notwithstanding the explanation
by the Directors to the Auditor, it is difficult for the Directors to
provide such evidences that could be considered sufficient and
appropriate unless and until the results of the measures are
observable.

View of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviewed the basis for disclaimer of
opinion, the management’s position concerning the basis for
disclaimer of opinion, measures taken by the management to
support the going concern assumptions in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. Considering the
measures by the management to mitigate liquidity burden, to
maintain its operations, and to improve its the financial situation,
the Directors and the Audit Committee agreed with the view of
the management to adopt going concern assumptions in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Audit Committee
had also discussed with the Auditor with respect to the multiple
uncertainties relating to going concern which led to its disclaimer
of opinion. The Audit Committee agreed that the disclaimer of
opinion could be removed upon the results of the measures are
observable.
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Plan to resolve the disclaimer of opinion

As disclosed in Note 1A to the consolidated financial statements,
the management of the Group have been taking active measures
to mitigate the liquidity burden, to improve financial situation,
and to maintain its operation. The Directors are confident that,
soon after such measures progressively take effects, the financial
condition of the Group will be restored, and thus, the multiple
uncertainties relating to going concern will be addressed.

Final Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Annual General Meeting and Closure of Register of
Members

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Monday, 9 August 2021. A notice convening the annual general
meeting will be published and dispatched to the shareholders in
due course in the manner required under the Listing Rules.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 4 August 2021 to Monday, 9 August 2021 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting. In
order to qualify for attendance and voting at the annual general
meeting, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s Share Registrars, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 4 August
2021.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2020, apart from the pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$385,129,000, the Group also pledged its oil
vessels with carrying value of approximately HK$83,184,000 to
secure bank loans granted to the Group.

Employees and Employee Benefits

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 957 (2019:
1,222) full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore and
other regions in the Mainland China. The Group remunerated
the employees based on their performance, experience and
prevailing market practice. Employee benefits provided by the
Group include a mandatory provident fund scheme and medical
insurance scheme.
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The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognises that an effective corporate
governance framework and high governance standard are both
essential to the Company’s long-term development. Set out
below is the corporate governance report prepared by the Board
in accordance with Appendix 14 “Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report” of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 the Company
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
as set out in the corporate governance code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 for the Listing Rules, save for a
deviation from the provision governing tenure of non-executive
directors mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to re-
election. The Company deviated from this provision in that none
of the non-executive directors are appointed for a fixed term,
instead their tenure of office are governed by the provisions
for retirement by rotation and re-election as provided in the
byelaws of the Company (these provisions are described in the
paragraph headed “Non-executive Directors” below). The board
of directors believes that the fixing of the tenure of non-executive
directors by way of provisions contained in the bye-laws, and
the shareholders’ right to re-elect retiring non-executive directors
as contained in the bye-laws, will serve the long term interests
of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, the measures
adopted by the Company are no less exacting than those in the
CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors (the “Board”)

The Board currently comprises four executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. Biographical details
of all directors of the Company are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Profile” on page 4 to page 5 The current
structure and composition of the Board have provided it with an
appropriate mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
and the Board reviews its structure and composition from time to
time to ensure that appropriate expertise and independence are
maintain.

Membership of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2020 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Siu Ka Fai, Brian (resigned on 23 August 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

All directors have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of offices they held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitment, including the identity of the
public companies or organizations and indication of the time
involved. Managing Director Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence is the
son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a
cousin of Mr. Cen Ziniu, executive director of the Company. The
Board establishes the strategic direction for the development of
the Company and sets out the objectives of the management,
with operational decisions and execution delegated to the
management. The Board also approves annual budgets, major
funding proposals and investment proposals, and oversees the
processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk
management, financial reporting and compliance. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions of the Group,
including the development and review of the Group’s policy and
practices on corporate governance.
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With the assistance of the company secretary, Board meetings
are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are consulted on
the agenda. Procedures are established for all directors to have
free access to board papers and related information, to review
the Group’s internal controls, and to have the services of the
company secretary to ensure matters are transacted in the Board
in accordance applicable rules and practices. Directors may seek
independent professional advice upon reasonable request to
discharge their duties. All committees of the Board have specific
terms of reference clearly defining their respective powers and
responsibilities and committee meetings are held as required
under these terms of reference. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions or recommendations.

The following table shows the attendance of directors at
meetings of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2020:
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Number of Meetings

Name of director Attended
EElNE HEEERE
Executive Directors: HITES :

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) B (ERE) 4/4
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFAHHE) 4/4
Cen Ziniu BG4 4/4
Siu Ka Fai, Brian (resigned on 23 August 2020) BRE (R 2020 F 8 A 23 AFHT) 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors: B TESE :

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony iR $97%5 4/4
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict RR B JE 4/4
Dr. Xu Mingshe Gk 4/4

During the year, all directors received regular briefing and
updates on the Group’s business, operation and corporate
governance matters. They also attended training relevant to the
industry, regulatory updates or directors’ duties to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills-as listed company directors.
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Through participating in the Company’s board meetings and
committees meetings, and review of briefings and updates
on the Company’s business and affairs, all directors are able
to make contribution required from them to the Board and to
the development of the Company. The Company has received
confirmation from each director that he has given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company during the year
under review. The Company has also received from the directors
a record of training received by them during the year which is
summarized as follows:
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Type of Training

Name of director Attended
EENE H R EIE R
Executive Directors: BITES -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) B (EE) A B
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFLAHE) A, B
Cen Ziniu SF4 A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHHITESE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony &I A B
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBSE A B
Dr. Xu Mingshe wETELT A B

Notes:

A Attending briefing and updates on rules and regulations related to
corporate governance law and practice

B Reading of material and updates on the Group’s operation and
finance and on the industry generally

Chairman and Managing Director

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
are separated by written guidelines adopted by the Board to
ensure a clear division of responsibilities. The responsibilities
of the Chairman include leadership of the Board, providing
relevant information and mobilizing the collective resources of
the directors in the Board’s roles and functions. The Managing
Director is responsible for leadership of the management, and for
execution of business strategies and front-line execution.
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Non-Executive Directors

As at the date of this report, three members of the Board are
independent non-executive directors. The term of appointment
of non-executive directors is governed by the Company’s
byelaws pursuant to which at each annual general meeting one-
third of the directors of the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the
definition of the Listing Rules.

During the year, arrangements were made for the non-executive
directors to meet with the Chairman without the presence of the
executive directors, to consider and discuss various matters in
respect of the management of the Company.

Board Committees

The Company has set up three Committees in accordance with
the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee. In addition to the above 3
Committees, the Board has set up an Executive Committee
comprising all executive directors on the Board. Under its terms
of reference, the Executive Committee is responsible for the
oversight of the management of the Group and the formulation
of administrative guidelines.
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Audit Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Audit Committee
comprises all independent non-executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal control
procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship
with the external auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
effectiveness of the internal audit function and the system of
internal control covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. Through direct communication and meetings with the
management, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
reporting of the Company, including the Company’s interim and
annual reports, and the financial position of the Company as
disclosed in the financial reports, and it has also reviewed the
engagement of external auditors and the effectiveness of the
audit process.

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year 2020 during
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed:

° Auditing and financial reporting matters;

° Appointment and remuneration of external auditor;

° Non-auditing work of external auditor;

o Financial reporting process and risk management functions;
° Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system;

o Review of interim results and audited financial statements;
o Review and monitor of the internal audit function; and

° Based on the Group’s risk management function i.e policies

and procedures, formulate the scope of internal audit work
for 2020.
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Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at meetings
during the year is as follows:

Name of Member

BEMR

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) 3&k$89%(Z 5
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict FRIBAE

Dr. Xu Mingshe AL

Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee, which are in line with the principles
of the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
nonexecutive directors and two executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and senior management. It takes into consideration
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once
a year to access the performance and review the annual salaries
and bonus of the senior executives.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors, reviewed and discussed,
among other matters, the Remuneration Policy of the Company
and its implementation. 2 meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held in the year to review, among other things,
the remuneration packages of the Chairman, the executive
directors and senior executives.
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Attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:

Annual Report 2020 —Z=ZTFFf
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BEMR HESERE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) KEB(ZEEEF/E) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBAE 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe AL 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence 2a 2/2
Cen Ziniu ZF4 2/2
Nomination Committee RE|EEE

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Nomination
Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two executive directors as follows:

Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman)
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board, identify suitably
qualified individual for appointment to the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

Board Diversity Policy

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee may make reference to certain criteria
such as the Company’s needs, the diversity on the Board, the
integrity, experience, skills and professional knowledge of the
candidate and the amount of time and effort that the candidate
will devote to discharge his/her duties and responsibilities.
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The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefit of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance
and hence the purpose of the Board diversity. To comply with
the provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, a board diversity policy was
adopted by the Company pursuant to which the Nomination
Committee is responsible for monitoring the implementation of
the board diversity policy and assessing the Board composition
under diversified perspectives (including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience). The Nomination Committee shall report its findings
and make recommendation to the Board. Such policy and
objectives will be reviewed from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness in determining the optimum composition of the
Board.

Nomination Policy
1. Objective

1.1 The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable
candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to board of directors for election as
executive directors or non-executive directors of the
Company to fill casual vacancies.

1.2 The Nomination Committee may, as it considers
appropriate, nominate a number of candidates more
than the number of directors to be appointed or re-
appointed at a general meeting, or the number of
casual vacancies to be filled.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1 The factors listed below would be used as reference
by the Nomination Committee in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate.

° Reputation for integrity

o Accomplishment and experience in the energy
industry, in particular, in the liquefied petroleum
gas (“LPG”), oil and other energy products
markets

° Commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest
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2.2

2.3

2.4

° Diversity in all its aspect, including but not
limited to gender, age (18 years or above),
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service

These factors are for reference only, and not meant
to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination
Committee has the discretion to nominate any person,
as it considers appropriate.

Retiring non-executive directors, save for those who
have served as non-executive directors for a period of
9 consecutive years, are eligible for nomination by the
Board to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
For the avoidance of doubt, (a) the 9-year period for
determining the eligibility of an non-executive directors
(including a retiring Government Appointed Director
who opts for election) for nomination by the Board to
stand for election at a general meeting would count
from his/her date of first appointment as an non-
executive directors until the date of the forthcoming
annual general meeting when his/her current term of
service will expire at the end of that meeting; and (b)
an non-executive directors who has been serving on
the Board for a period of 9 consecutive years or more
may continue to hold office until expiry of his/her
current term.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information in a prescribed form,
together with their written consent to be appointed
as and executive directors or non-executive directors
and to the public disclosure of their personal data
on any documents or the relevant websites for the
purpose of or in relation to their standing for election
as executive directors or non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates
to provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

2.2

2.3

2.4
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3. Nomination Procedures

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call
a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if
any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee
prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated
by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing
candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they have
been proposed by the Board to stand for election at
the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a
general meeting, and to invite nominations from
shareholders, a circular will be sent to shareholders.
The circular will set out the lodgment period for
shareholders to make the nominations. The names,
brief biographies (including qualifications and relevant
experience), independence, proposed remuneration
and any other information, as required pursuant to
the applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidates will be included in the circular to
shareholders.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidate
at any time before the general meeting by serving a
notice in-writing to the company secretary.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at any general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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2 meetings of the Nomination Committee were held in
the year to review and discuss the structure, diversity,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and to assess the independence
of independent nonexecutive directors of the Board. The
Nomination Committee considers that all Board members
possess the relevant skill and knowledge in the area of
the business operation of the Group. The Nomination
Committee also considers that an appropriate mix of skills,
experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on the
Board is maintained and therefore no measurable objectives
were proposed to the Board.

Attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee
at meetings during the year is as follows:

Name of Member

REMRE

Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman) ELH(ZEE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony K978
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBE

Dr. Xu Mingshe ‘rEMIET
Shum Chun, Lawrence G

Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and
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° to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company’s corporate governance policy is formulated
with an emphasis on transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
our operations with applicable laws and regulations.

During the year, all members of the Board have discussed and
reviewed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. They have also reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as well as
its disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. A code of
conduct applicable to employees and directors setting out the
standards of behaviour that the Company expects from them and
the guidelines on how they should handle different situations in
business dealings with the Group were formulated and adopted
by the Board. The board also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Model Code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by employees of the Company, or directors or
employees of the Company’s subsidiary or holding companies,
who are likely to possess inside information of the Group.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness and for this
purpose has maintained an internal audit function which is
internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s permanent
establishment. The management of the Company has established
a set of comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in
areas of operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding
assets against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of
financial information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance
against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
is conducted by the internal audit function on an on-going basis,
and the responsible personnel will directly report to the Audit
Committee on any significant finding on internal controls.
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The Board considered that throughout the year 2020, the
Company complied with the code provisions on internal controls
as stipulated in the CG Code. During the year the Company
conducted a full review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and discussed the assessment bases with
the management. The Board considered that the existing internal
control systems of the Group are effective.

Inside Information

The Company adopted a policy for disclosure of inside
information which sets out guidelines for the release and control
of inside information to ensure that the Company, its directors
and employees meets the obligations for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. A framework has been
set up to assess whether any particular information is inside
information, to ensure that any information considered to be
inside information should be kept confidential before the relevant
information is fully disclosed to the public, and to coordinate the
disclosure of the information in accordance with the requirements
of the Securities and Future Ordinance and. The Chairman, the
Managing Director, executive directors responsible for the control
of the Group’s operation and the Head of Investors Relations are
authorized as spokespersons of the Company.

Shareholders’ Rights

Rights of shareholders of the Company are provide under, and
are subject to applicable laws and regulations (which include
the Bermuda Companies Act and the Listing Rules) and the
bye-laws of the Company. Set out below is a brief summary of
certain rights of the shareholders of the Company, which is for
easy reference only. The relevant laws and regulations and the
byelaws of the Company should be referred to for a full account
of such shareholders’ rights.

Convening Special General Meeting on Requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to require an special general meeting (the
“SGM”) to be called by the Board by written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholder(s) making the requisition and stating
the purposes of the requisitioned SGM, deposited at the
registered office of the Company.
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If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to convene
such SGM, the shareholders making the requisition, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an SGM, provided that
the SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 2
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Proposal may be made by shareholders in the form of resolutions
proposed at an annual general meeting, or in the form of
statements circulated to shareholders with respect to matter(s)
referred to in any resolution or matter to be dealt with at any
general meeting. Shareholders, representing at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders, may by written
requisition request the Company to: (a) give to shareholders
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved at the
next annual general meeting of the Company, and which the
requesting shareholders intend to move at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the next general
meeting.

In the case of shareholders requesting the Company to give
notice of a resolution, the written requisition must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office not less than 6 weeks before
the date of the annual general meeting. In the case of any other
requisition, the written requisition must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office at not less than 1 week before the
date of the annual general meeting.

In order to notify the Company at the earliest opportunity of
the deposit/intended deposit of a written requisition referred to
in the above, a copy of the requisition may be delivered to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 23/F.,
The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong or email to cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.

Proposing a Person for Election as Director

Procedures have been set up by the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws for shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a director. Details of the procedures are
available on the Company’s website.
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Contacting the Board for Enquiries

Shareholders may contact the Board for enquiries in respect of
the Company’s information, to the extent such information can
be made available to the public. Shareholders may at any time
make enquiry in respect of the Company in writing at our head
office in Hong Kong by post or facsimile via the numbers and
email address provided on the Company’s website or email to
cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.

Investor Relations

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy. The use and effectiveness of such policy will be
monitored and reviewed regularly by the Board. The Company
recognises the importance of shareholders’ privacy and therefore
will not disclose shareholders’ information without their consent,
unless required by law to do so.

To achieve equal access to information on the Company’s
latest major development, measures have been taken to ensure
all necessary information and appropriate updates are made
available to investors in a timely manner through corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company’s website under the column of “Investor Relations”.
Corporate communications required to be given under the
Listing Rules, any applicable laws and corporate procedures
will be provided to shareholders in plain language and in
both English and Chinese versions to facilitate shareholders’
understanding. Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 54/F., Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. For enquiry about
the information of the Company, shareholders may contact the
company secretary.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in the Company’s
general meetings. Members of the Board will attend to answer
their questions.

The Company has also posted its constitutional documents on
its website and there was no significant change in them during
the year under review.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Crowe (HK) CPA Limited is set out as follows:

Services rendered

ZBENEN &

FA- BN/ BN TARR R BN E S E
(BE)EHMEBMBERABTZERNT

Fees paid/payable

BRF IR 4t B2t EHER
HK$’000

FET

Audit services EE RS 3,400
Non-audit services IEE AT ARTS 400
Total A&t 3,800

Accountability and Audit

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group and ensuring that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The statement of the external
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 58.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”), oil products
business and sales of electronic products.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business and the analysis using the
financial key performance indicators are set out on pages 8
to 27 of the annual report under the heading “Management
Discussion and Analysis”. In summary, the Group’s revenue
from operations for the year was down by 30.99% reflecting the
decrease in sales volume and the fall in average price of energy
products compared with last year to approximately HK$19,180
million. The total sales volume of energy products decreased
by 24.50% to approximately 5,636,000 tons. Due to COVID-19
and the slump in global oil prices in first half year of 2020, the
gross profit margin derived from oil bunkering business and
electronic business has been substantially reduced or turned
into gross margin. Thus the overall gross margin decreased
to 1.0% as compared to 6.8% of last year. Loss for the year
amounted to approximately HK$3,716 million mainly due to drop
in gross profit and additional impairment provisions for goodwill,
other intangible assets, deposits paid, trade receivables, other
receivables, inventories and property, plant and equipment etc.
The basic loss per share from operations amounted to HK$2.42.
The equity attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
41.90% to approximately HK$4,654 million.
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There are a number of principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group as follows: (i) COVID-19 imposed a lot of strict restrictions
and quarantine policies in different countries including the PRC,
Singapore and Malaysia etc. in which the Group has operations
and investments; (i) the Group is under debt restructuring and
has going concern issue, the details are set out in Note 1A
of the consolidated financial statements; (i) the recent global
economy is gloomy due to the trade war which has slowed
down the economy growth in China; (iv) the fluctuation of the
oil and LPG price in the global market; (v) PRC government’s
policies in promoting green energy such as NG and electricity;
(vi) the substantial fluctuation in RMB exchange rates. The
above is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group. These may change
over time as new risks and uncertainties emerge and others
cease to be of concern. Looking ahead, the global economy
will remain uncertain. However, as necessity goods, the rigid
demand for energy products will continue to exist, thus LPG and
oil products are still the core business for the Group. In order
not to over concentrated on one single market, for the past few
years the Group was actively expending the sales network of our
existing products in other countries i.e. Singapore and Malaysia.
However since the Group is under debt restructuring, the internal
resources is limited and the Group will focus more on business
operation with higher return.

Particular of the major suppliers and customers of the Group
are set out on page 49 of the annual report. The Directors are
satisfied with the relationship with customers and suppliers.
The Directors recognize the importance of having good working
relationship with its staff as staff is the key assets to the Group.
The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its staff nor significant labour disputes or industrial actions. The
Group did not experience any significant staff turnover especially
for the management level. The Directors believe that the Group
has good working relationship with its staff as a whole. In
respect of corporate social responsibility, our target is to commit
to motivating the low-carbon growth of the industry, providing
green energy for the developing of the whole society and taking
into account the needs of our stakeholders, including impact
on the environment and the communities in which we operate.
The details of the above are set out in the Environmental Social
and Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2020
published on the Company’s website www.newoceanhk.com.
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Save and except for one deviation from the Corporate
Governance Code as set out under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the details of the deviation are set out on page 28 of
the annual report), the Company has complied in all material
respects with all relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 62 and 63.

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend and
propose that the profits for the year be retained.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
the Group records a profit after tax and that the declaration and
distribution of dividends does not affect the normal operations of
the Group.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of
final dividend will be subject to the approval of the shareholder.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s operations, earnings, financial
condition, cash requirements and availability, capital expenditure
and future development requirements and other factors it may
deem relevant at such time. Any payment of the dividend by the
Company is also subject to any restrictions under the bye-laws
of Bermuda, the memorandum of association of the Company
and the shareholders.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there
is no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in
any specific periods.

Five Years Financial Summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 248 of
the annual report.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spend approximately
HK$130,415,000 (2019: HK$8,430,000) on property, plant
and equipment to expand and upgrade its LPG and oil plant.
Details of the movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Reserves of the Group and the Company
Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves during the year
are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”

on page 66.

The Company has no reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2020:
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FET F&T
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(Accumulated losses) retained profits (RETEE)RBER (4,994,783) 138,044
(4,993,116) 134,711
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and the total of
the five largest customers accounted for approximately 11%
and 42% (2019: 7% and 30%) respectively of the Group’s total
turnover for the year, including discontinued operations.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 20% and 61%
(2019: 16% and 55%) respectively of the Group’s total purchase
for the year.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Charitable Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$270,000.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Siu Ka Fai, Brian (Resigned on 23 August 2020)

Independent non-executive directors:
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s bye-
laws, Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence and Mr. Cen Ziniu, shall retire
by rotation from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. All directors retiring at the annual general
meeting have offered themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office for each non-executive director is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2020, the interests of certain directors and chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:
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(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of
the Company

Annual Report 2020 —ZZ=ZFFH{ | 5]

(a) FLFSHREEO0.10EBTHERPZLF
-

Percentage of
Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of

Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
FR{EF AT
FRi5E 8T BERTHRH
EEMs 213 BERRBR R Bintk
Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 108,714,358 7.40
e EmlEA
Corporate interest (Note 1) 479,139,280 32.64
AR RIS FEA (7t 1)
587,853,638 40.04
Shum Chun, Lawrence Beneficial owner 57,623,558 3.92
28 EmEEA
Other (Note 2) 71,870,892 4.90
Hitw (#1572
129,494,450 8.82
Notes: Miat

1. These represent the block of 479,139,280 shares beneficially
owned by Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”) which
were held as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, and
were the same block of shares as referred to in note 1 in
the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders” below.
Uniocean is owned as to 70% by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, 15%
by Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, and 15% by Mr. Shum Ho,
Neo, both are sons of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

2. These interests reflect 15% proportional interest of Mr.
Shum Chun, Lawrence in the 479,139,280 shares held by
Uniocean.

Other than disclosed above and nominee shares in certain
subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for the Group, none
of the directors, chief executive nor their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2020.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director or a connected entity of a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly in any contract,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Connected Transaction

The Group had the following transaction during the year ended
31 December 2020:

(A) Connected Transaction

On 9 December 2019, Sound Management Services
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a lease agreement with Ever Lucky Limited
(“Ever Lucky”), the renewal of the lease of office in Hong
Kong for one year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Lease”).
Ever Lucky is a connected company owned by Shum Ho,
Neo, who is the son of Shum Siu Hung and Tong Shiu
Ming, Shum Siu Hung is the executive director. The value
of the right-of-use assets recognized under the Lease
amounted to approximately HK$4,560,000. The details of
the Lease was set out in the announcement issued by the
Company on 9 December 2019.
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(B)

Continuing Connected Transaction

On 2 November 2018, Baifuyang Macao Commercial
Offshore Limited (“Baifuyang”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company had entered into a bareboat charter
agreement with Link Harvest Enterprise Limited (“Link
Harvest”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong and
wholly owned by Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, managing
director of the Company, for the lease of a very large
crude carrier (“VLCC”) under the name “Astro Chorus”
(subsequently changed the name to “New Global”) at
the monthly rate of hire of US$290,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,256,200 per month) for a term of 36
months commencing from 1 December 2018. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of the
lease paid or payable to Link Harvestwas US$3,480,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,074,000).

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the Group’s continuing connected
transaction as disclosed above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
The independent non-executive Directors confirm that the
continuing connected transaction has been entered into by
the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business,
on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreement governing such transaction
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Group and the shareholders as a whole.

(B)
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2020, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors and chief
executive, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company:

Name of shareholder

B RER ne %' &R
Uniocean Long Beneficial owner
pski AE BEREAA
Tong Shiu Ming Long Family interest (Note 1)
& /N EA e Kichess (Hat 1)
Long Family interest (Note 2)
Sy Kkt (Mat2)
Yam Tak Cheung Long Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 3)
FEE wAE RiEwl R aERES (Mt 3)
Wong Tseng Hon Long Beneficial owner
EiRE e EnEAA
Notes:

1.

Long/Short

positions Capacity

These represent the same block of 479,139,280 shares held
as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms.
Tong Shiu Ming as referred to in note 1 under section (a) of the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and were deemed to be the
family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

These represent the same block of 108,714,358 shares held
beneficially by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms. Tong Shiu
Ming as referred to in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and
were deemed to be the family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

83,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Integrated Asset
Management (Asia) Limited (“Integrated Asset”). Mr. Yam Tak
Cheung owned 100% of Integrated Asset and was deemed to be
the controlling shareholder of Integrated Asset.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules

On 25 August 2016, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a term loan facility of US$150,000,000 for the
purpose of refinancing of any existing indebtedness of any
member of the Group and financing the general working capital
requirements of the Group. The loan to be made to the Company
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in four instalments,
10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which
falls 30 months after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the
utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls 36 months
after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the utilized amount is
repayable on the date which falls 42 months after the date of
first drawdown, and the remaining 70% of the utilized amount is
repayable on the date which falls 48 months after the date of the
first drawdown.

On 26 April 2017, Sound Agents Limited (“Sound Agents”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into the
facility agreement for a revolving short term advance facility
up to HK$150,000,000 or the equivalent in other major foreign
currencies for financing the Group’s general working capital
requirements. The loan advance to be made to Sound Agents
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in six months and
the loan advance is subjected to revolve for another six months
upon each repayment date.
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On 28 May 2018, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a term loan facility with two tranches:
tranche A of US$145,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,128,000,000) and tranche B of HK$195,000,000 for
the purpose of refinancing of any existing indebtedness of
any member of the Group and financing the general working
capital requirements of the Group. The loan to be made to the
Company upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in four
instalments, 10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the
date which falls 30 months after the date of first drawdown,
10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls
36 months after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 42 months after the
date of first drawdown, and the remaining 70% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 48 months after the
date of first drawdown.

On 30 August 2018, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a term loan of HK$130,000,000 for the purpose
of financing the general working capital requirement of the
Group. The loan to be made to the Company will be repayable
in four instalments, 25% of the utilized amount is repayable on
the date which falls 15 months after the date of first drawdown,
25% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls
18 months after the date of first drawdown, 25% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 21 months after the
date of first drawdown, the remaining 25% is repayable on the
date which falls 24 months after the date of first drawdown.

On 18 December 2019, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a term loan facility of US$23,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$178,940,000) for the purpose of financing
general working capital requirements of the Group. The loan
to be made to the Company upon utilization of the facility will
be payable in five instalments, 10% of the utilized amount is
payable on the date which falls 12 months after the date of
first drawdown, 20% of the utilized amount is repayable on the
date which falls 18 months after the date of first drawdown,
30% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls
24 months after the date of first drawdown, 30% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 30 months after the
date of first drawdown, and the remaining 10% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 36 months after the
date of the first drawdown.
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Under the above facility agreements, in the event the Shum
Family (comprising certain family members and relatives of Mr.
Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company as set out in the
facility agreements) cease to remain as the largest shareholder
and maintains less than 30% shareholdings of the Company,
the facilities available to the Company will be cancelled and all
outstanding amounts will then become immediately due and
payable.

As at 31 December 2020 the Shum Family beneficially own
approximately 43.97% in aggregate of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 were audited by Messer.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

On 29 April 2021, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was appointed by
the Board to fill in the causal vacancy following the resignation of
Messer. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
were audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as auditor will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2021
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWOCEAN ENERGY HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 62 to 247, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we have not been able to form an audit opinion
on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
Multiple Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern

As set out in Note 1A to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group incurred a net loss of HK$3,715,896,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2020. As at the same date,
out of the Group's current borrowings of HK$6,620,843,000,
HK$4,202,627,000 were overdue. In addition, based on the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
the Group was not in compliance with certain restrictive
financial covenants and certain borrowings of the Group
contain cross-default terms, causing borrowings of the Group
of HK$2,418,216,000 as at 31 December 2020 to become
immediately repayable in accordance with the respective
loan agreements whereas the Group only had cash and cash
equivalents of HK$873,742,000 as at 31 December 2020.
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These conditions, together with other matters described in
Note 1A to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the
existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking a number
of measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial
position, to refinance its operations and to restructure its debts
which are set out in Note 1A to the consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends
on the outcome of these measures, which are subject to multiple
uncertainties, including (i) whether the Group can obtain the
necessary and relevant approval for the scheme of arrangement
as described in Note 1A to the consolidated financial statements;
(i) whether the Group is able to negotiate with the relevant
banks for the renewal or extension of repayment of the bank
borrowings, including those overdue principal and interests; (iii)
whether the Group is able to obtain waivers from complying
with certain restrictive financial covenants and due payments of
loan principal and interests pursuant to the cross-default terms
for certain borrowings; (iv) whether the Group can successfully
implement its operation plan to generate cash flows from its
operations; (v) whether the Group can obtain additional sources
of financing to finance its business as and when needed to
restore the Group’s business activities to a more desirable scale;
(vi) whether the Group can successfully collect its outstanding
receivables by taking active measures in addition to/in lieu of
litigation; and (vii) whether the Group can successfully take
measures to down size the oil products business to reduce
operating cost and to generate additional cash through disposal
of certain core and non-core asset items and sales of Zhuhai
commercial properties development, which requires executing
definitive agreement with the potential buyers and obtaining
the necessary approvals from the regulatory authorities and
shareholders.
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Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements on 8 April
2020.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA
and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 June 2021

Chan Wing Fai
Practising Certificate Number P07327
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEBEmRHEMEEKEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaE FET FET
Revenue WA 5 19,179,843 27,791,913
Cost of sales SHER A (18,984,205)  (25,909,656)
Gross profit EH 195,638 1,882,257
Other gains and losses EMFTIS R EE 7 (84,658) (40,854)
Other income H At A 7 168,602 62,450
Selling and distribution expenses HE koS (509,968) (529,277)
Administrative expenses TR H (380,732) (383,325)
Finance costs B & AN 8 (282,706) (358,485)
Impairment losses on trade and JE W B 5 AR R E A FE UL SR IE
other receivables 2R a8 9 (1,140,944) (8,000)
Impairment losses on goodwill and other &2 & E b EF & &
intangible assets ZREEE (790,386) —
Impairment losses on property, VI - R RREREEE
plant and equipment (84,000) =
Impairment losses on deposits EfET & RIERFHKIE
paid and prepayments 2 BIEEE (827,000) —
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets i F#EEE 7 HEKE (31,000) —
Share of profits of joint ventures DG E R A 3,473 2,091
Share of profit of an associate D — KB E A B A 849 358
(Loss) profit before taxation B AT (B8 ) i Al 11 (3,762,832) 627,215
Taxation THIE 10 46,936 (20,105)
(Loss) profit for the year FA(EE) & T (3,715,896) 607,110
Other comprehensive income (expense) i 2 W A (2 H)
ltem that will not be reclassified TEEHHEIBERK
to profit or loss: ZIEE:
Exchange differences arising on HmE AS|REEES
translation to presentation currency ZIE R =R 542,503 (203,182)
ltem that may be reclassified to HEEHHHAINERR
profit or loss: ZIEH:
Exchange differences arising on EH BN SR s E A
translation of foreign operations 2 [EH =% (337,839) 105,228
Other comprehensive income (expense) FRHEMEEUA (ZH)
for the year, net of income tax (FBRFT1SHR) 204,664 (97,954)
Total comprehensive (expense) income  F AL HE (2 H) WA
for the year (3,511,232) 509,156
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEBEmRHEMEEKEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E 2020 12 A 31 AIEFE
2020 2019
NOTE HK$°000 HK$’000
izt FETT FET
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to:  FE{54E A (E518 )% A :
Owners of the Company PIN/NGIEZEN (3,558,546) 642,175
Non-controlling interests FEfEHl i (157,350) (35,065)
(3,715,896) 607,110
Total comprehensive (expense) income  fEM4E2E (X H) KA
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PIN/NGIE7ZEN (3,355,819) 544,192
Non-controlling interests FEfEHl i (155,413) (35,036)
(3,511,232) 509,156
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings BIRERREE (F51E) B 15

per share (HK$2.42) HK$0.44
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At 31 December 2020
A2 2020F 12431 H

2020 2019

NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FET
Non-current assets FERDEE
Property, plant and equipment E T IS 16 2,438,159 2,254,174
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 17 461,596 559,486
Gooduwill EES 18 144,864 766,973
Other intangible assets HmpEE 19 - 178,202
Interest in an associate —REE DA S 20 7,977 6,689
Interests in joint ventures GEPEER 21 12,361 19,265
Deposits paid and prepayments BEffiES RIBNRIE 22 116,609 693,407
Deferred tax assets RIETIH & E 34 878 821
3,182,444 4,479,017
Current assets RENEE
Inventories A= 23 865,602 1,410,456
Trade receivables FEW & 5B R 24 3,957,749 4,778,317
Other receivables, deposits and HMEWER - Za & 24
prepayments TET IR 1,398,027 2,429,078
Amount due from an associate JE U — KB & A RIFRIE 25 7,830 6,716
Derivative financial instruments TERBIA 44 13,775 6,606
Properties held for sales BERFEYHE 23 20,000 146,841
Properties under development for sales {36 ZE R )3 26 1,118,570 766,253
Pledged bank deposits BIRHEITER 27 385,129 360,218
Bank balances and cash SRITERNIE S 27 873,742 2,288,684
8,640,424 12,193,169
Current liabilities 4 A=K}
Trade payables e B IR 28 44,387 974,192
Other payables and accrued charges HE e RN EE A 28 318,468 211,974
Contract liabilities aRaE 29 93,522 78,909
Lease liabilities HEBE 30 50,974 57,868
Amount due to an associate FEASF — SR Hi & A RIFRIB 31 10,411 9,480
Amount due to a joint venture JER —KE & 3ERIE 31 - 5,576
Derivative financial instruments PTEMKT A 44 25,180 9,787
Tax liabilities MBaE 108,813 117,100
Borrowings secured by pledged bank BB RITERIERE 32
deposits — repayable within one year BR— AR —FAREE 328,487 328,487
Borrowings secured by other assets B HE B EERAIE X 32
— repayable within one year — AR —FRNEE 21,209 12,529
Borrowings unsecured EERAE R 32
— repayable within one year — AR —FRNEER 6,271,147 5,340,256
7,272,598 7,146,158
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At 31 December 2020
A2 2020F 12431 H

2020 2019

NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
izt FETT FEIT
Net current assets REREE 1,367,826 5,047,011
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEME 4,550,270 9,526,028
Capital and reserves BER#EE
Share capital [N 33 146,812 146,812
Share premium and other reserves AR (B I A b 4 4,507,047 7,862,866
Equity attributable to owners of the RATEE AEERERZR
Company 4,653,859 8,009,678
Non-controlling interests R (196,856) (35,554)
Total equity HatEL 4,457,003 7,974,124
Non-current liabilities FERBRR
Deferred tax liabilities R TA 34 15,185 64,280
Borrowings secured by other assets R E M B EERAE 32
— repayable over one year — AR—FREER - 21,302
Borrowings unsecured — repayable YR IRfE K 32
over one year — AR —F1REE - 1,351,836
Lease liabilities HEAE 30 78,082 114,486
93,267 1,551,904
4,550,270 9,526,028
The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 247 were BESER2021F6 A28 HEM RIRHEEE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on FO2E247THZFa M BomEk - WHTIIE
28 June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: ERRERE
Shum Siu Hung Shum Chun, Lawrence
g =g
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EFE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE
Attributable to owners of the Company
BATCHRARY

Statutory Contributed Capital Non-

Share Share Special surplus Exchange surplus Other  redemption  Retained controlling

capital ~ premium TeSeVe  resenves reseve  accounts reserve reserve profits Total interests

LU} M v3 Ef 1 ) 13 #8 8l

B iR i B BRE L L] & #e 2
HKSO00  AKSO00  HKSOWD  AKSO00  HKSUOD HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  AKSOOD  HKSOWD  AKSOOD  HKSOOD
tr  FEr fr FEr fr e HEr FEr fEr TEr D 41

Note ) Note ) (Note i)

At1 January 2019 R19E1A1R 16812 1415719 122,085 68523 (146,599 1,667 (121) 128 586118 7,465,486 (23604 7,441,682

Proft/loss| for the year Eigr(ER) - - - - - - - - bl 6217 (%089 607,110

Eichange diferences arsng on tensitionto - AE B EEELE 28

presentafion currency - - - -y - - - - 0479 197 (03,182

Eichange diferences arsng on tensitionof - A BNEZKELE 28

foreign operations - - - - 106,746 - - - - 106,746 (1518 106228
Tota comprefiensie (expense)/ ncome EMAE(LL) h5aE

for the year - - - - (97,983 - - - 642,175 544,192 (35,036) 509,156
Appropriatons 2 = = - 3578 - - - - 3578) - - -
Captel contbuton fomanoncontroling—~— ~FHEBATEAHERLE

interest of a Subsiclary - - - - - - - - - - 23,086 23,086

At 31 December 2019 RA19E12A31 8 146812 1415719 122,085 12,101 244,562) 1,667 (127) 1228 6494775 8,009,678 (35,954 7974124

Loss for the year ERER = = = = - - - - (45585d6) (3998,546) (1573500  (3,715,896)

Eichange diferences arsng on tensaion o~ R AFIE S HELE 28

presentaton currency - - - - 554,208 - - - - 554,288 (11,785 542,508

Eichange diferences arsng on tansitionof - RAEBNEZRELE 28

foreign operations - - - - (151 - - - - (315M) 18612 (337,839
Tota comprefiensie ncomel[expense) EREENG(LL) R

for the year - - - - 200,721 - - - (3598546) (3365819 (155413 (3,511,289
Appropriatons I - - - a1 - - - - (3.47) - - -
Purchases of eqy inerests fom R-FHEADNEE R

anar-contrling inerest o a subsicary fEhERR - - - - - - - - - - (5889 (5899

At 31 December 2020 RAONE12A3A 146812 141519 122,085 15,548 (41,858) 1,667 (121) 128 2000782 4653859  (196,856) 4,467,008

Notes: HieE -

()  The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between () AEEZERIFEREERORIRARBRG
the share capital, share premium and capital redemption reserve of ZASEMREIERABZERA « BRDRE
the Group’s former ultimate holding company whose shares were MEREOFE - BARAIRKE 19994 4 A
exchanged for the Company’s shares and the nominal amount of 14 BRI 2 BB E BT H T 8 M B 1TRND
the share capital issued by the Company pursuant to a scheme of HEZER -
arrangement dated 14 April 1999.

(i)  The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise development (i) ZEEBRBFBEEHEEREFEARLME(SH
and general reserve funds appropriated from the profit after B |) 2k K A8 ) Fh B pk 37 2 BB A B BR B
taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic BaimokZEXERE —RFEEES -
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the PRC laws and
regulations.

(i)~ The Group has no material non-controlling interests and therefore (i) AER B S RIEIE G R - ML R ER

the relevant information is not disclosed.

HEEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERY
(Loss) profit before taxation BR% AT (E518 ) 4= A (3,762,832) 627,215
Adjustments for: THEE .
Share of profits of joint ventures DihEE PR (3,473) (2,091)
Share of profit of an associate D1 — KB = D Al A (849) (358)
Finance costs BB AR 282,706 358,485
Interest income FLE A (69,715) (20,697)
Loss (gain) on fair values changes of PTEMB T AR ESRE
derivative financial instruments Z BB (FS) 124,780 (9,561)
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - MR RRETE
equipment 131,682 151,641
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 70,215 57,888
Net loss on disposal and written off of — H& RS S - #eE R
property, plant and equipment and il R BB E iR SR
other assets 122,801 10,303
Gain on deemed disposal of a joint WRAEHE—XK
venture B EDEMS - (9,218)
Impairment losses on WIEEE
— trade receivables — BWE FRR 746,944 8,000
— other financial assets subject to — XEHREREERE
expected credit losses ) E Ath B 75 & B 394,000 —
Impairment losses on VERIEY =
— goodwill — & 642,481 =
— other intangible assets — HivE\pEEE 147,905 —
— property, plant and equipment — W HEBERFE 84,000 —
— right-of-use assets — EREEE 31,000 —
— deposits paid and prepayments — BfES RIEMRIA 827,000 =
Write down of inventories FERE 349,000 =
Amortisation of other intangible assets — Hfth 4 J2 & B £ 40,020 40,170
Operating cash flows before movements ‘=i & & & ]2
in working capital KEREME 157,665 1,211,777
Decrease in inventories FERL 197,817 309,445
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables JEUWE ZERZOR A (3E0) 91,266 (67,542)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, HbEUWEZ - Be &
deposits and prepayments TR IR A (3 0) 1,086,856 (211,809)
(Increase) decrease in amount due from UL —SREf & A B FUIE
an associate (3 0) R > (612) 4,105
Decrease in amount due from a joint B —RE & ERIER LD
venture = 2,036
Increase in properties under FEERD YL
development for sales (285,021) (56,839)
Decrease in properties held for sales BEFEYERD 136,996 —
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2020 2019

NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FET

(Decrease) increase in trade payables FETE S 8RR CRl )38 N (933,817) 124,609
Increase (decrease) in other payables H At FE A BR SR R FEET B AR 3L 0

and accrued charges OR2) 75,099 (111,667)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities & £ & &340 Cri2>) 8,513 (67,987)
Increase (decrease) in amount due to an  FE{ —SREE A A T FRIE L f1

associate CR ) 259 (4,782)
Decrease in amount due to a joint B —XRE & ERIER D

venture (5,614) (2,939)
(Increase) decrease in derivative financial #7487 T B (32 i0) 35 4

instruments (116,503) 7,517
Cash generated from operations KEEFIRGE 412,904 1,135,924
Income tax paid B TSE (12,899) (22,709)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM EEEEELET&BHE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 400,005 1,113,215
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREED
Interest received B UWH B 65,024 20,960
Net cash inflow on acquisition of I EEKT B AR M A FEE

subsidiaries 89 - (18,086)
Purchases of property, plant and IBEYE  HBERRE

equipment (450,775) (97,067)
Payments for right-of-use assets SRS E = (1,390)
Dividend received from a joint venture H—REeEEEFERERE 11,229 =
Payments for rental deposits YEEZRS (3,176) (3,783)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FIRE IR RITIFK = (124,343)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant HE&EWE « #EE R RERES

and equipment 39,298 51,356
Increase in deposits paid B iez g (163,568) (458,096)
Deposits refunded RERS® - 7,981
Loan advances to independent third MBYE=HER

parties (452,193) (3,501)
Repayment of loan advances from BUE=HEEER

independent third parties 12,610 6,034
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEDMARE PR

ACTIVITIES (941,551) (619,935)
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2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Interest paid BAFE (226,996) (364,155)
New borrowings raised SBFER 16,133,309 24,160,395
Repayment of borrowings EEEx (16,580,653)  (24,276,596)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEAE (50,959) (42,205)
Payment on purchase of equity interest ¢ —Z Bt B 2 & 8 3E4%
interest from a non-controlling interest ~ HEZS UK B AR FERE 25
of a subsidiary (5,889) —
Capital contribution from non-controlling — %< Mt /& A 71 &) 3E 1% &l
interest of a subsidiary fREEE - 23,086
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METHFRARESHE
ACTIVITIES (731,188) (499,475)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH HB&RERBE&EARDSHE
EQUIVALENTS (1,272,734) (6,195)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE IIBEEET T E
RATE CHANGES (142,208) 918)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT $#HR&RERARELER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,288,684 2,295,797
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT #XB&RERHLEE
END OF THE YEAR 873,742 2,288,684
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HeRSERR&BEEHERSIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 873,742 2,288,684
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its ultimate and immediate holding company is Uniocean
Investments Limited (“Uniocean”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate controlling
shareholder is Shum Siu Hung. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are the sales and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas (“‘LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”), sales of oil
products, sales of electronic products and property dealing
and development.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is different from the
Company’s functional currency of Renminbi (“RMB”). The
directors of the Company adopted HK$ as presentation
currency. For the convenience of the financial statements
users, the consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, as the Company’s shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

—REH

HEBEREEBERARIARRA]DTS
RBREETMAR I BEHRREREER
A ERDEREBMARSAARAA
(MBRFT)) £ - ERKRREERZERA
AREBBERBRAR(IEH]) » —[
REBRZEFEMKIL AT » HEE
BERABZS VM - ARBZEMPRE
kR 22 R WA B RFRANLQE
BERRERE -

ARBREMBAR(AEE])HRE
BEERAR - ARBZEZXHERHER
DB HR(BERDEXAR
(TRAR)) - HEBM  HEETEM
ENER P RER -

REMBHRENBETTAETDRE A
BIRARF —OMIeE E-ARE( A
RE]D ARAEZHRAETERE
SIEHE - MRAREZ IR BE AP £
W RABEREMBREERE A%
B RERFBARAET(HETT )R
=
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

1A. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS 1A. REFEZCEXFERRZHRIEE

IN THE CURRENT YEAR AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

Significant events and transactions in the current year

In mid- April 2020 there was news about the oil industry
(as defined below) which caused unexpected and drastic
moves of certain banks, cumulated in the freezing of
credit provided to the Group and multiple demands for
early repayment. Moreover, due to the global COVID-19
pandemic and the big slump in oil prices in the year
2020, the Group’s business operations during the year
were seriously affected, especially the oil bunkering
business in Hong Kong and Singapore and the electronic
business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
As a consequence, the gross profit margin derived from
oil bunkering business and electronic business had been
substantially reduced as compared to last year or in
certain cases turned into gross loss margin. On top of
the foregoing, due to the continued weak energy demand
throughout the year arising from the global lockdown, the
Group had experienced undue delay in collection of trade
and other receivables, inventories were sold at price below
purchase costs and contracting of sales volume in different
business units. In certain cases, the buyers used various
pretexts to avoid their payment obligations and the Group
had to resort to litigation to recover the amounts due and
incurred substantial legal and other costs and expenses.
Whilst the Group has been vigorously pursuing the trade
debtors and any other parties involved and expects to fully
recover all overdue payments together with compensation
for the Group’s losses and damages, the Group provided
impairment losses on trade and other receivables and write
down on inventories for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Due to the uncertainties of the oil market and the Group’s
internal resources re-allocation, the management decided
to concentrate the resources on the Group’s profitable
business units, as a conseqguence, impairment had been
made for goodwill, intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets related to business
units that the management decided to downsize to certain
extent. Particulars of impairment assessments related to
goodwill, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are disclosed in notes 18, 19, 16
and 17 respectively.

B

REFEZEXER

M2020F 4 A/ - ARBmITEFRFE
—EHEB(EERTX) AEBEXEK
A RITARETEANEERAERRE
AEBEAEEERNEE - mAN
B 2 EG AR RS AT A K% 2020
FHERK AEBEFANEBEES
HEESE  LEERRBRIINENE
EMBAEBARBREARLMB(F
Bl MEFER - Bt - 2REE L
XBREFEBNEFNEELFRALD
ARRBEIR  SERLIBRTEEAEEE
BE o B EiAEIN - BAZREH
2FRERT KFERS  AEBEERD
JE UK & 5 BR 3k K EL A FE UK BR 30 B 2 B
TBEMNIEIE - MERRBKAERH
EEMRTREBEMEES W - &
FUERT BEAUAKEEORS T
HHER  MAKEBEESEELFRAUE
BIR - B SR AREEEREMER
Y BEAEE —EERGBE
W B 5 Bk 3% M AF ] H i 22 5% B9 4R B A
I WHAE 2 U EIFT A B H B A &
HASBEMERRIBEEHEE - BX
EBNERBE2020F 12 A31 HIEF
EREREZEFIELHREBERTE
B o AR AR SN TEE MR AE
ERNABERENOR  BEEERTE
HERERRAEEGF B R ERE
iz - Ak HEREBAEHAERER
ERENEBBEMNFENGE BFE
ERWME MERZERERBEED
ELRE - S« B EE - W -
Mas R R REEERENRERT
HFEBE D RIMFE18 ~19 16 R 17 HFE o
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NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #7188 REBAERA A

THE CURRENT YEAR PERIOD AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continued)

Significant events and transactions in the current year
(Continued)

The Group’s property project centrally located in
Gongbei, Zhuhai comprises 3 office blocks, 2 condo
blocks and 3-storey mall with underground parking,
having a total floor space of about 81,790 square metres.
Construction of the building structure and most of the
fitting out work have been completed in 2019. The
project targets the Greater Bay Area Market as well as
international corporations. Shortly after a sales drive of the
property started and certain overseas buyers had been
identified, travel restrictions were imposed in China and
neighbouring countries due to the COVID-19 epidemic. As
a consequence during the year of 2020, the Group was
unable to benefit from the expected cash inflow generated
from its property sales.

Apart from the above, in mid-April 2020, a major oil trader
in Singapore, Hin Leong Trading (Pte.) Ltd. (“Hin Leong”)
was placed under judicial management by the Singapore
courts (the “Hin Leong Incident”) reportedly due to, among
other things, defaults in payment of its loans to various
banks and financial institutions. The Hin Leong Incident
has had an immediate ripple-effect on the oil industry, as
banks in both Singapore and Hong Kong have apparently
became very concerned that there could be further defaults
by oil traders as oil prices drop and accordingly began to
tighten their credit lines to other oil traders in the market,
including the Group. As a result of that and despite that
the Group has no business or other connection with Hin
Loeng whatsoever, the banks still represented to freeze
their credit facilities granted to the Group and demanded
for early repayment of their loans. Given that the business
of the Group is heavily relied on the support of these credit
facilities granted by the bank, and that the COVID-19
epidemic had halted pre-sale of property in the Zhuhai
commercial development schedule for the first half year
of 2020 as reported above, the Group has experienced
liquidity pressure resulting in the Group being unable to
settle substantial amounts of bank trust receipts loans
when they fall due. Further during the second half year of
2020, because the Group was unable to meet the financial
covenants of its term loan facilities, the Group’s term loans
became immediate repayable.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

1A. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS IN 1A. REFEZCEXFERRZHRIEE

BH(E)

REFEZEXER(E)

@ YEBBURAKREHIERL - B
HE3ERAKE 2AREANENIES
WEYRLCE T EES) BEER
B4 581,790 F 5K - BELHMET
B R#H D EETEER2019F T ©
ZIEBSERNEEMBIARRBEE -
RAREEZMELETE T XL BINE
RETA  BRFABRESEE &
B EAERHAREN T HRTERG -
LR 2020F  AEEE LR MEHRE
TBEIELMBRESRPER

Btk 2 S8 FA20204% 4 A F A - #FT 0
FHEERBRESHEREE S (FAA)E
PR A R (RSB ELFZ |) B 3 03 % B 8
TREEE(EHEEHE]) - BikE -
FEHRBRZRBITREHBENE
FRETER - IR B B A m EE A S
SHIRIE « WIGTm(E AR « 3TN R BB
RIRITH D ELRAR HE Al fEE — 25
EH - BtFAREmE EHEMARE
SE(BEEASE)KEEEFEERE -
B - BEARSEEIEER A F M
S H B - NREBDARIRITE L
AEBNEERERREIER - ERNA
SENEBERREE EEBRIRTTIR
HZEEEEENIF - WAFMAETR
BERBEAE2020F L F |F Tk
BEERERBARPOEHEES - 10
XAt NREEAZRBESES
BN B AT B B (R K = 8RTT
EaE MR (E 3K o LAl - FE20204F T
F - ARAEEEARTHETHERE
ERMBER - Bt ARKEHEHER
BAETIEEE -
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1A. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS IN 1A. REFEZCEXFERRZHRIEE

THE CURRENT YEAR PERIOD AND BASIS OF BAEE)
PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial FEeMBEERERESE

statements

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$3,715,896,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The Group had current and non-current bank borrowings of
approximately HK$5,614,127,000 and HK$1,006,716,000
respectively, totalling HK$6,620,843,000 of which
HK$4,202,627,000 were overdue, while the Group
maintained its pledged bank deposits of HK$385,129,000,
and bank balances and cash of HK$873,742,000 totalling
HK$1,258,871,000. Given that the Group incurred a net
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
could not fulfil certain bank covenants relating to certain
bank loans and other bank loans with cross-default terms
of HK$2,418,216,000 causing such bank loans became
immediate repayable as at 31 December 2020. After the
reclassification, the net current assets of the Group had
been reduced from approximately HK$5,047,011,000 as
at 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$1,367,826,000
as at 31 December 2020. The above conditions indicate
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

KEBRE E2020F12 A31 8 It F
fE 8% 15 % 518 49.3,715,896,000 7 Tt ©
REBARE KIERBIRITERD B
#£5,614,127,000 7% 7t & 1,006,716,000
BT A ££6,620,843,00078 7T © H A
4,202,627,000 7 7T E #8 Hi - 2N 5 B 48
AT 445 H B I $R 1777 30 885,129,000
PBIT  IR1TAERR IR S 878,742,000 7T
#%81,258,871,00078 T ° R A& B
HZE2020F12 A 31 HIFFE LB FE
B AEEEEABEITEELRITERA
BRI LLSRT T4 - AR XXM E 5
HIERT TIE TR M ELAthERT T1B A 2,418,216,000
T+ (EH1,006,716,00078 7T & FER B
o) mEFHLE - WiK20209F 12 A31 H
IERERE T BRRERFRINEREEE -
BN % AEENRBEEFEDK
#H Z 20194 12 A 31 B £15,047,011,000
BB E2020F12 A31 BIEFE 4
1,367,826,000/8 7T ° % & B R KRBT
FERTEEME - ATEH RSB FEL
EHRENEEEXNERE - LB RETR
FPEGEEATHTEE  AgdAEE
R ECE R NEEENRR -
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1A. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS IN
THE CURRENT YEAR PERIOD AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Measurement on resolving the Group’s liquidity
burdon

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are of the
opinion that the Group will have sufficient working capital
to meet its financial obligation as and when they fall due
for the next twelve months from 31 December 2020 after
taking into consideration of the followings:

i)

Actively negotiating with individual banks to release
the limitation imposed and extend the existing banking
facilities to the Group;

Engaged an international firm of accountants as its
financial adviser to conduct an independent review of
the up-to-date financial position of the Group with a
view to facilitate the negotiations with banks for debt
restructuring;

Negotiating with banks on a proactive basis to
arrange and agree on a debt restructuring plan with a
non-legal binding debt restructuring term sheet signed
with several bank creditors in September 2020 (the
“September Term Sheet”);

1A. REFEZEXERARXHRIES
BIE(E)

REMBHERRNEEZE)

BAZEBEDERIBZIER

ARAER(EEDRAR

CREEEIAT

FIHE AEEBERHANEEE SR
1TE B2020F 12 A1 BB A KR K12

@A

i

BRI RA

TR L i SRR 1T 160 7 DA R BR P B
MBS - WIRR AR ERE AR
TRE

i — R ER R H B AR
B RO BRI TE
UEE  RERBTHEGEEE
G108

iR ERITHE - R 2020F9 A
HETRITEEARR —H ARZX
RO EBEAERRE( AR
REDULZHERRAEEHEMA

g :
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1A. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS IN
THE CURRENT YEAR PERIOD AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

iv)

Submitted applications to (i) the High Court of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Hong Kong
High Court”) and (i) the Supreme Court of Bermuda
(the “Bermuda Supreme Court”) in December 2020
for the Company to convene meetings of the bank
creditors for approving debt restructuring schemes
of the Company and Sound Agents Limited (“Sound
Agents”, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
(together the “Court Scheme”). As stated in the court
scheme announcements, issued by the Company,
orders to convene scheme meetings (the “Scheme
Meetings”) were granted by the Hong Kong Court
and the Burmuda Court on 10 December 2020 and
11 December 2020 (Bermuda Time) respectively.
However, as the Company and Sound Agent Limited
have been engaged in ongoing discussion with
some of the major scheme creditors, which may in
turn have implications over the terms of the Court
Scheme, at each of the Scheme Meetings a resolution
was approved to adjourn the Scheme Meetings.
After the adjournment of the Scheme Meetings and
following discussion between the Company and
the major scheme creditors, on 12 April 2020 the
Company applied to, and was granted leave by the
Courts to withdraw the Court Scheme in order to
prepare the New Court Scheme. The New Court
Scheme contemplates that all Scheme Claims will be
restructured into a global loan facility provided by the
Scheme Creditors to the Group, with the Company as
the borrower and Sound Agents as the guarantor. The
Company’s lawyers were then instructed to revise the
court documents for the New Court Scheme to reflect
the change and to resume the relevant applications
to Hong Kong Court and the Bermuda Court. The
Directors are optimistic that the Court Scheme
will bring about a successful restructuring of the
Group’s off-shore bank loans since over 75% scheme
creditors have been proactively negotiating the debt
restructure and preparing necessary documents in
order to support to the Court Scheme in principle,
and that active steps are taken to finalise the terms
for the bank lenders to seek final approval; and

1A. REFEZEXERARXHRIES
BIE(E)

REMBHERRNEEZE)

| () & B 5 BTEE = AB (A
TEE SEER DRI ERES
EERATEHB ARESE)
Bt )RR EEE © R2020F 12 A -
HARRBERITEEASE
AHEARR R RTBREABR
AR([FEREA] AR2RZE
BB AR/ EBEHTE(F
BADERETE]) o INAARA A
B AR S A SR - BB AR
RBRELRERS D B 2020 F
128108 N2020F 12 A11H(H
RERRE) AR e[S
&) o A - ARARRRFTER
BAFERE T EFEIERAL
TR E - AR ETEIA 6K AT BE B FE
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S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

1A. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS IN
THE CURRENT YEAR PERIOD AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

v)

At the same time while the above measures are
taken to mitigate the liquidity burden on the Group,
the following measures were taken to maintain its
operation and improve its financial situation.

a)

carrying out the Group’s business operations
with credit facilities granted by financial
institutions and internal available cash. The
profit generated from the operation is used to
finance the ongoing operations the scale of
which is adjusted according to the availability of
resources;

taking other active measures to recover debts
in addition to/in lieu of litigation to expedite
collections of outstanding receivables;

intensifying the sales effort of the Zhuhai
commercial development through brokers so
that sales can be resumed as soon as possible;

taking measures to down size the oil products
business to reduce operating cost and to
generate additional cash through disposal
of non-core asset items for the purpose of
repayment to banks and/or additional working
capital; and

to exploring means to raise working capital to
restore the Group’s business activities to a more
desirable scale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

1A. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS IN
THE CURRENT YEAR PERIOD AND BASIS OF

PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

Vi)

vii)

According to valuations conducted for the purposes
of the Court Scheme, the total market value of the
Group’s certain assets exceeds the amount to be
repaid under the Court Scheme. The Company has
potential buyers for major items of these assets and
commenced negotiation with these buyers. In general,
the price of non-binding offers received from these
buyers are equal to or above the valuation.

As evidenced by the fact that the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$19,180 million with a
gross profit of HK$196 million during the year despite
the adverse conditions stated above, the Group
remains under effective management and the core
strength of the Group remains unaffected.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The
effect of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for Group’s annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE
APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendment to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to

HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS
39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions’

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021°

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018
— 2020°
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decision made by the primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except
for leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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EZ2020F 12 A31 HIEFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. HENEBERECHEUNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT RHBUR (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 XEGBE
Basis of consolidation FEEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting
policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s
and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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B E 20204 12 531 HIFF/E
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FEMEBEERRCZEUNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT L& G-

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to
apply an optional concentration test, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The concentration test
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The
gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no
further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FEMEBEERRCZEUNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT L& G-

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in October
2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of
low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e., the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income,
as appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be
accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted retrospectively during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see accounting policy
above) less any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in

the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit
(“CGU”) or any of the CGU within the group of CGUs,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on
the basis of the relative values of the operation (or the
CGU) disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the

group of CGUs) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and a joint venture is

described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements
of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes
in net assets of the associate or joint venture other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted
in changes in ownership interest held by the Group.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a
joint venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of
the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint
venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit
or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e., when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Qutput method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right
to consideration in an amount in an amount that
corresponds directly with the value of the Group’s
performance completed to date, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount to which the Group has the
right to invoice.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (that is, the Group is a principal) or to arrange for
those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (that is, the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified good or
service by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified good or service provided
by another party before that good or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

For certain commodities, the sales price is determined
on a provisional basis at the date of sale as the
final selling price is subject to movements in market
prices up to the date of final pricing, normally ranging
within 60 days after initial booking (provisionally
priced sales). Revenue from such contracts is initially
recognised based on relevant prices at the time of
delivery and subsequently adjusted as appropriate. All
revenue from these contracts, both that recognised at
the time of delivery and that from post-delivery price
adjustments, is disclosed as revenue from contracts
with customers.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. HENEBERECHEUNEERTES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

st BR (&)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will
not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the contract are subsequently changed. As a
practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the
Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. HENEBERECHEUNEERTES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

st BR (&)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of certain properties that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of inventory as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position. Right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of inventory are presented within “properties under
development for sales”.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

3.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. HENEBERECHEUNEERTES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

st BR (&)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

° the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability, less any lease incentives receivable, based on
the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at commencement
date at amounts equal to net investments in the
leases, measured using the interest rate implicit in
the respective leases. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors)
are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

FAMBRRCERNEERTES
st BR (&)
FEEHEE)
#HE(E)
FEEERAHEN ()
HEREGE)

AEBERBERBEERREEELET
MEEAE  UHHERERGEA
MEEREETENE - BEE
RIEXNBEaEERD AL —ExZ
EESMEESIFHER DB - A&
BRBHE D VRSB ER R
FHEERDNEBILER  HEE
AANTHRESEESEEES

5 -

AEBERL N
HESERFE

AEBEREEANEES AR
EHERKEHE - EHEMNERK
BEE L EMEREEMBEMRRN
PR B % ¥R B 68 e 45 A AR
ZREHNRFRARERE - T8
HibHERRESEEME -

MEEE T RYOEE AR IR
MAMERRERFTE B8
FRHEEFRE  AEAZERE
RSN ERE - YIaEERKA
(RERARERHAAEENE
BRARSI) BREHEEFREN
PRt ER « FIBWANEEES
iR - ARBRASE S BEHENKR
EEFRENEEE RN B DR -



Annual Report 2020 =ZZ=ZFF3{ | 105

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E 20204 12 531 HIFF/E
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FEMEBEERRCZEUNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT L& G-

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset,
and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value
model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and
non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone selling prices.

#HE(E)
FEEERL AN (B)
HEDBKEE)

REMENHS W AEERESH
[RAZREREER SEE © £
Rz EHERELNTIRER
KA AHEEENREE - B8
KRAREE AR E SR ER S
X(BRBAFEREGFENREY
ESE IO

HASE -—REGBEFELNH
SWATIZINRIA »

DEREZAOMAKED

EAMNRKEEEERIFHEER
7 ARBERBEBY RS LR
F1ROEREEZENTNEE
FIFRER D o FFHEAKEOR
IEERE B SHEEREEEAEN

WA -



106 |

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1882 REBHER Q5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction
of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the original lease as part of
the lease payments for the new lease.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purpose
other than construction in progress, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties
are classified as property, plant and equipment.

3.

FEMBERRCREEERETRE
st (&)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

Hx - BERRW

BRIEZTIZON W% - MR RRE
RAWEE  BREESRHEE
HRTS - RIETRETRBEZET
TInER & B F5 R R AL B AN B HIRL
HEZRFERRFTRERE(N
BIARK -

ERRAEE - HREXTERENY
AR R ERSE
KRABREEZEFANKEERERE
Het A BB EREBA H E R
FITAFR BV S BEAMMSRIF RO B A
URERETRIRENEEMS @ 1R
BAKEEERRENMMMERRK
Ko ZEFEEFRTERGE - R
Hib ¥R EEARREERATE
e -

EAKERRMENHEAEE LS
( %Tﬂ‘*iﬁ&@—‘?ﬁi“)ﬁ%’\
E2HRENEEL M REFTK
ZF'EHﬂM‘*ﬁEEZJHTEMEﬁT ~FHE
HEEPID BE - FEARRE IS SRAE AT 520
FEMEER  (EAKREHE AR
HE LS IANMEREEE X
[FANHEERINEAIIR - £
MBARRERT - EHETEAEIFE
EREMOMBREBELHE RS
HER A SEDRR - BEWE
BOBRAME - BEMEME -

107



108

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #7188 REBAERA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets, other than construction in progress,
over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. For vessels, the residual value of
each vessel is equal to the product of its light weight
tonnage and estimate scrape rate.

Vessel components costs include the cost of major
components which are usually replaced or renewed at
dry dockings. The Group capitalises dry docking costs
as they are incurred and depreciates these costs
using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. HENEBERECHEUNEERTES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

st BR (&)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Properties under development for sale

Properties for/under development for sale which are
intended to be sold upon completion of development
and properties for sale are classified as current
assets. Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties
for/under development/properties for sales are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure
incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less
estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to
make the sales.

Properties for/under development for sales are
transferred to properties for sale upon completion.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful live less impairment
losses, if any (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other

than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment

loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable

amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets
are allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU or group of
CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant

CGU or group of CGUSs.

3.

FEMBERRCREEERETRE
st (&)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

BEES YR  BERRE - E
FRREERBEEEZRE(TE
ELEXZHRE T BFE)

EEHRPER  AREEFHEABR
AERFHRzZAEREERLEEL
BEIORTEELEERLARMER
18 o WLIRERBREET - bt
MEREE < PR E S RIABERE
BE(NE)RE -

M - MR MRE  EREEER
B EE 2 NI el 5 58 5 & Bl
At REAEEHER & E 2 AT E
T8 AREBEFZEEMBR
TEEBEMZAIKEISHE -

FERRE 2 EL BUARER - 2
AIEEEANRIAE R —HH
DEEREHEOEEAARSES
B SASEIEERHRE
ELEMNME  ABYAER—HH
DECEM - JRESRIEAREE
BNReELBUNRCELE
AT  WERBEREELEN
SR ELSVANKREEETY

111



112

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #7188 REBAERA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a
CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of
a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the CGU or the group of CGUs. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or the
group of CGUs) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or
the group of CGUSs) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable to
a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of
the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income
and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s interests in
associates/joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (that is, HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the year, in which case the exchange rates at the
date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement
or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.,
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Exchange differences arising from the translation
of the Company’s functional currency, RMB, to the
presentation currency, HKS$, are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Such exchange differences accumulated in
exchange reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation before 1 January 2005 is treated as non-
monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and
reported using the historical cost prevailing at the
date of acquisition.

3.

FEMBERRCREEERETRE
st (&)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

I8 (E)

R EFIMEERB (B EAE
BREIME B 2 2R - X
HEBRKERBBIMSEE 2
MIE AR EEHIHE - REHHER
BBIMEEEE 2 KA 2P i &
NBEZ R - MRE RS
BE)R  ARFEHAARIGHAR
BRFEREZRENT AR

BESN - fid & — FEIFT /8 X B 2 &R 1D
W AR BN B K KL% B R A
ZPETIRE - I L OIS RETSNE
ERMEME AR - M
KBz AR - YRMAE R D
& (BN BB 7 1 & B & 2 =) i I 4%
ERAEREREEATED) - A
UL O RETINEZBREHM NI

E=i8m e

BARBNEEEARBRERZ
S RGBT AT E RV Z RN H
2R ST R - WNBREREE
AT EmT Rt (BER IFER
) (RITRMIE ) & B E
BTMEN RFEEITEERAR
E¥MOME -

R E2005F1 18 280k iE
YFINEETS T EE A K A 3 B E E RS
BRAFERBWR AHWIE S /E
B ESNETE B o 35 A UREE B &Y
RAITIE L R A EITIRE o

115



116

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1882 REBHER Q5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. For properties under development for
which revenue is recognised over time, the Group
ceases to capitalise borrowing costs as soon as the
properties are ready for the Group’s intended sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market
rate of interest is treated as a government grant,
measured as the difference between proceeds
received and the fair value of the loan based on
prevailing market interest rates.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit (loss)
before tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

3.

FEMBERRCREEERETRE
st (&)

3.2

FEEHEE)
n"nE

PRGBS A BB B IR 0 E R
SRS 2 HBFN o

= MR IR IR F B R B A st
B o BRPENANEMFER 2
ARBMA KA TS - AREA
b N EB 2B A - B
HADE M (B 1R) Z BE R - A%
BZBHHRIR A ETIREHRMARE
BETSARMEEETZHEGFE -

BEERGREREEARESEY
TR 2 MR (B B 5T H R R B A
ZHERBRE B EREERE - 10
HIRERTHE R 25 - —R—EH®
RBELERBGAE - BERBEE
— AR A A] RE 3R AT A A % AT A
BERZB I ERTUE NS RAE
AR E R R - AW - BY
HEBRTERDEHA BRI
EERIAMTPITZEETENZR S
(XBAvtRINMEREREME
ENAEMEY AT ERRBE
BEERGEEMAILE © thIh - BT
A & FE R AN B 1 7 B R

19



120

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1882 REBHER Q5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the
leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable
entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans such as state-managed retirement benefits
scheme and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in
the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.
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S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers, including
trade related amounts due from an associate and
a joint venture, which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

3.
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S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, loan advances, deposits
paid and other receivables, amounts due from an
associate and a joint venture, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. HENEBERECHEUNEERTES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

st BR (&)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessments are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

FEMBERRCREEERETRE
st (&)

3.2 FE®HBE(E)

MBIR(E)

HBEEEE)

M EEREE)

(i

EHHER

RAMEERREEMS
B RN ER L AINFER
ERNENBRES AR
BEARERA(BEANEE)
2EMNK(TE RBAANEER
BRI ERR) - MAKHE
RREBELENEM -

Tim LIER - MEmEE
EaEEEo0 R - BIREH
RREELEN  RIFEAKE
EESERAEENZRAR
ERNENGREE REMAI

= Bl ©



Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

()  the purchase or origination of a financial
asset at a deep discount that reflects the
incurred credit losses.
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EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. The Group uses a
practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade and other receivables and
loan advances are considered on a collective
basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such
as forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfer nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay, if the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownerships
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FEMEBEERRCZEUNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT L& G-

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 FESEBE(E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other
financial assets or the Group has the sole discretion
to defer payment of distribution and redemption of
principal amount indefinitely are classified as equity
instruments.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial
liabilities) including trade payables, other creditors
and accrued charges, amounts due to an associate
and a joint venture and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset
and the net amount presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position when, and only when,
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends
upon the basis as set out in note 1A to the consolidated
financial statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Determination on lease term of contracts with
renewal options

The Group applies judgement to determine the lease term
for lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include
renewal option, specifically, the leases relating to offices,
retail stores, warehouse, staff dorm and vessels. The
assessment of whether the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise renewal options impacts the lease term, which
significantly affects the amount of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets recognised. Re-assessment is performed
upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the
control of lessee and that affects the assessment. When
assessing reasonable certainty, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances including economic
incentives/penalties for exercising or not exercising the
options. Factors considered include:

o contractual terms and conditions for the optional
periods compared with market rates (e.g. whether the
amount of payments in the optional periods is below
the market rates);

o the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken by
Group; and

o costs relating to termination of the lease (for example.
relocation costs, costs of identifying another
underlying asset suitable for the Group’s needs).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the exercise of
the renewal option, which is detailed in note 17, resulted
in an additional amount of HK$12,143,000 of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities recognised.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Principal versus agent consideration (principal)

The Group engages in trading of LPG, oil and electronic
products. The Group concluded that the Group acts as the
principal for such transactions as it controls the specified
good before it is transferred to the customer after taking
into consideration indicators such as the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the goods.
The Group has inventory risk. When the Group satisfies
the performance obligation, the Group recognises trading
revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled as specified in the contracts.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment on non-current assets

In considering the impairment losses that may be required
for certain of the Group’s non-current assets which
mainly include property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, intangible assets, goodwill and deposits paid and
prepayment, the recoverable amount of the asset need
to be determined. The recoverable amount is the higher
of its fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. It
is difficult to precisely estimate fair value because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be readily available.
In determining the value in use, the Group uses all readily
available information in determining expected cash flows
generated by the CGU to which the asset belongs and
they are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgements. Notwithstanding that the Group
has used all available information to make this estimation,
inherent uncertainty exists and actual write-offs may be
higher or lower than the amount estimated.

Provision of ECL for financial assets

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs and effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered. In addition, trade receivables with credit-
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in notes 36 and 24 respectively.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment allowances on other receivables

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires judgement,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different
levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex
models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding
the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies.
Elements of the ECL models that are considered
accounting judgements and estimates include:

° The Group’s internal credit grading model, which
assigns probabilities of default to the individual
grades;

o The Group’s criteria for assessing if there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime
ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

o The segmentation of financial assets based on risk
characteristics of the customers and by product types
when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis;

o Development of ECL models, including the various
formulas and the choice of inputs over determination
of the period over which the entity is exposed to
credit risk based on the behavioural life of the credit
exposures, loss given default and collateral recovery
of the credit exposures;

o Determination of associations between
macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, and
the effect on probabilities of default, exposures at
default and losses given default; and
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment allowances on other receivables
(Continued)

o Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive
the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models
in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when
necessary.

Properties under development for sales (“PUD”) under
inventories of properties

As explained in note 3.2, the properties are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value (the “NRV”). The
directors of the Company make significant judgments in
determining the estimated selling prices of the properties
and the estimation of future costs to completion of the
properties, where applicable.

Based on the experience of the directors of the Company
and the nature of the subject properties, the directors
of the Company determine the NRV of the properties by
reference to the estimated market prices of the properties,
which takes into account a number of factors including the
recent prices of similar property types in the same project
or by similar properties, and the prevailing and forecasted
real estate market conditions in the PRC. The directors of
the Company estimate the future cost to completion of the
properties, where applicable, by reference to the actual
development cost of the Group’s completed projects,
adjusted by certain current market data.
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5. REVENUE
Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less sales related taxes.

A. For the year ended 31 December 2020

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

Type of goods and services

HRRBHER

Sales and
distribution of LPG
SERABELE

A

WATEARBERIINAET P HEE M
YE R FEUER 2 & B OB B BT IR ©

A. #EE2020F12A31HIEEEE

Ol products

business

HaRY

KEEHEFBIBA B

Sales of electronic
products

nEtTER

Sales of
properties

hRiE

HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET FET
Sales and distiouton of LPG HERAHRLA
Wholesalers i 3,621,974 - - - 3,621,974
End users Sl 2,182,957 - - - 2,182,957
6,404,931 - - - 6,404,931
Ol proolucs business il
Sale of ofl products HERD - 10,087,845 - - 10,987,845
Provision of agency senvices RERBARE - 14,620 - - 14,620
- 11,002,465 - - 11,002,465
Sales of electronic products HEETER
Integrated circui GABER - - 1,629,208 - 1,629,208
Mobile phones i - - 23,739 - 23,739
- - 1,652,947 - 1,652,947
Sales of proporties S - - - 119,500 119,500
Tota ait 6,404,931 11,002,465 1,652,047 119,500 19,179,843
Geographical mrkets, based on shipment destination B - KEMR 0t
Mainland China hE 5,276,105 5,370,992 1,652,947 119,500 12,419,544
Hong Kong B 2512 2,026,933 - = 2,035,445
Singapore % 6,553 3,461,080 - - 3,467,633
Others (Notg] ) 1,093,761 143,460 - - 1,287,221
Total A 6,404,931 11,002,465 1,652,947 119,500 19,179,843
Note: Other countries represented mainly countries in the Mt EBRE EE A E(TE
Asia Pacific (excluding Singapore) and United Arab FEFTINE ) R AL S P R -
Emirates.
Timing of revenue recogniton ERRpARER
A point in time — (iR 6,404,931 11,002,465 1,652,947 119,500
Over time EEER = 5 - -
Total A% 6,404,931 11,002,465 1,652,947 119,500
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5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. IgA(E)
B. For the year ended 31 December 2019 B. EEX2019%F12A31HLLEE

KEEHWEFIMA 53 #F

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

Sales and (o]
distribution

Sales of
electronic
products

HERTER

products
of LPG business
HER

RS

HaREHES SERILR

Type of goods and services

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Sales and distribution of LPG HERDRILR
Wholesalers Vigia] 2,960,096 - - 2,960,096
End users RSP 4,559,130 - - 4,559,130
7,519,226 - - 7,519,226
Oil products business AR
Sale of oil products HEBm - 19,277,227 - 19,277,227
Provision of agency services RAERE AR - 12,724 = 12,724
- 19,289,951 - 19,289,951
Sales of electronic products HEETER
Integrated circuit FABEIR - - 842,703 842,703
Mobile phones Fi - - 140,033 140,033
- - 982,736 982,736
Total At 1,519,226 19,289,951 982,736 27,791,913
Geographical markets, based on shipment MB35 © REY)
destination X
Mainland China M 5,768,379 6,780,893 982,736 13,532,008
Hong Kong Eh 28,270 4,567,109 - 4,595,379
Singapore Hms - 6,859,173 - 6,859,173
Others (Note) Ati(Hit) 1,722,577 1,082,776 = 2,805,353
Total ait 7,519,226 19,289,951 982,736 27,791,913
Note: Other countries represented mainly countries in the et EmBREEREEAME(TE
Asia Pacific (excluding Singapore) and United States. FEFTINE) REE -
Timing of revenue recognition RAMANEE
A point in time — (R A2 7,519,226 19,289,951 982,736
Over time BEEER = - -
Tota A 7519226 19,280,951 982,736
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REVENUE (Continued)

5.

C.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

Performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group recognises revenue from the sales and
distribution of LPG, oil products and electronic
products in the period that the performance
obligations are satisfied which refers to delivery of the
goods to the destination specified by the customers.
The destination may be a vessel on which the goods
are shipped or destination port or the customer’s
premises. Performance obligation are satisfied at a
point in time once control of the goods has been
transferred to the customers and the customers
have obtained control on the goods through their
ability to direct other use of and obtain substantially
all the benefits from the goods. Transportation and
other related activities that occur before customers
obtain control of the related goods are considered as
fulfilment activities. The payment of the transaction
price for the sales and distribution of LPG to certain
end-users is due immediately at the point the
customer purchases the goods. Other than that, the
credit period granted to customers ranges from O
to 180 days upon delivery for the revenue streams
of sales and distribution of LPG, oil products and
electronic products.

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held/
developed for sale in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when legal assignment is completed,
which is the point in time when the customer has the
ability to direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the

property.
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REVENUE (Continued)

5.

C.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
(Continued)

Performance obligation for contracts with
customers (Continued)

The Group recognised revenue from the provision
of agency services when the Group satisfies its
promise to arrange for the goods to be provided by
the suppliers to the customers and in the amount of
any fee or commission to which the Group is entitled
for arranging the goods to be provided to the end
customers. Performance obligations are satisfied at
a point in time once control of the goods has been
transferred to customers.

Contracts with customers with unsatisfied
performance obligations, including sales and
distribution of LPG, oil products and electronic
products, have original expected duration of one year
or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregated amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s existing
pre-completion sales contracts for properties under
development for sales is HK$47,475,000 (20109:
HK$29,557,000). The Group will recognise the
expected revenue in future when or as the work is
completed and the properties are assigned to the
customers, which is expected to occur over the next
12 months (2019: next 12 months).

5.

WA (&)

C.

#H#F 2020 X 2019F 12A 31 HIE
FERILEEZ)

HEFRETSANEYEY (Z)

EARKBEEITAG L HERR
EPRHER  URAEBE ALY
EYnRXBENTAERANAENE
B - EREHEAERGORA -
—BEMNERIRERGER B
HMEBRETK °

BERERBEHNEHNEFRF A
Rl BREALCR HmalkEFEHR
RHEMDH - RBEHHESH—
FREE - RESEM RS ER
F15MHER - PEEERFARKE
MmRA RN ZERILRHE

MR2020F 12 A31H * & B & A&
SEREHFEERTWET LA
HEARBETHRBARBAR
5 (B 1% 42 %8 547,475,000 JT
(2019 : 29,557,000 7T ) » A £
EAS1E AR R TIESEA R sk TE A8 M 3
DEATERFERTESH KA - B
157 AR A2 16 A (2019 © KK 12
&l A)EEAE -
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B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on nature and location of
the goods being sold. These revenue streams and the basis
of the internal reports about components of the Group
are regularly reviewed by the CODM in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

The Group is currently organised into the following major
operating segments, each of which represents an operating
and reportable segment of the Group:

1. Sales and distribution of LPG — This segment
derives its revenue from the selling of LPG to various
customers including industrial customers, auto-gas
operators, overseas wholesale customers, bottled
LPG end-users and auto-gas end-users.

2. Qil products business — This segment derives its
revenue from the selling of oil products, including
revenue from oil products in which the Group acts as
an agent.

3. Sales of electronic products — This segment derives
its revenue from the trading of electronic products
such as integrated circuit and mobile phones.

4. Sales and distribution of NG — In prior years, the
Group began to venture into sales and distribution of
NG industry which was still at preliminary stage, the
segment information reported below includes assets
related to the sales and distribution of NG business.
The NG business is still in development stage
and no revenue was contributed during the year.
Thus, the segment information reported below only
includes assets and liabilities related to the sales and
distribution of NG industry.

SERH

RERDE RS BERAFEMAARRF]
TREIEELERRE(TERER
REDEBZEREFIREEERZKE
B - TELERRETHENZ
FWARRERBRAAREE O ANEP R
EZEM  UNEERTEDELFE
HRR - REFAKBEZ 280K
VEEFETBRERREMBS 2 EE

D

AEBRCEBUTIELESE  H
BFERAEEZEENZRNR !

1. HERSHEBRLR — HOHEHE
ERERTIRAER  BREIXR
B REMREER  BIMLER
B mER LR AP &TEM
RARmAPELEWRA °

2. HmEH — HoBAESH®D
BERAREERRIE AR mA
EEZHA -

3. HEBTEmM — UNEHAHEEE
TEM FaERREFHRES
WA e

4. HERDERAR — RBEEFE
N AEERBPRHEERDEX
ARRER - BINBYFER - T
REBZABER(BREHEERD
HAAREBGHEZEE) - KA
REBIDEZRRER  WEALK
REBTREA - AT2HRZ2NDER
ERRBREHEER D HRARE
GHENEEREE -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

SERHEE)
SEABARER

UTREZEEZBNEREEVRIAD 2K
SEWARFEN -

#F2020F 12531 HILFEE

Sales and (o]]] Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products
$ER
SEBIER mERYE HEETER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
F#T F&T F&T FET
Segment revenue LN 6,404,931 11,002,465 1,652,947 19,060,343
Segment loss SREE (33,641)  (2,002,071) (657,954)  (2,693,666)
Share of profits of joint ventures AMEEELERT 3,473 = = 3,473
Share of profit of an associate AME—REE R EEH 849 - - 849
(29,319) (2,002,071) (657,954) (2,689,344)
Other income HAA 69,715
Loss from property dealing and HEMER S REE BB
development in the PRC (136,996)
Impairment losses on other HitERERZUREER
receivables (352,000)
Central administration costs R EFER R (61,143)
Directors’ emoluments TS (7,578)
Impairment losses on deposits paid 2 H1& 4 RIERFM HIE 2
and prepayments REEE (178,000
Changes in fair values of derivative  $74B1#% T BAF{E 2 B &
financial instruments (124,780)
Finance costs BEKA (282,706)
Group’s loss before tax AEERTIAER (3,762,832)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. H¥EBIHE)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) BB ARERE(Z)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 E#F2019F 128 31 HILEE
Sales and Qll Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products Total
HER HE
DBALR M ES ETER A
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET AT
Segment revenue L ON 7,519,226 19,289,951 982,736 27,791,913
Segment profit Gk hagl 523,905 413,889 80,994 1,018,788
Share of profits of joint ventures ~ S{AA & EEF 2,091 - - 2,091
Share of profits of an associate 21— FEE = A Bl Al 358 — — 358
526,354 413,889 80,994 1,021,237
Other income H A 22,003
Central administration costs hRETR RN (56,286)
Directors’ emoluments ==& (10,815)
Changes in fair values of FTERBTARTEZRE
derivative financial instruments 9,561
Finance costs BMERA (358,485)
Group’s profit before tax AEE BT AN 627,215

There are no segment revenue and segment results from
NG business.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. All of the segment revenue reported above is from
external customers, joint ventures or an associate. Segment
(loss) profit represents the (loss from) profit earned by each
segment without allocation of interest income, certain other
income (loss) from property dealing and development in
the PRC, impairment losses on other receivables, central
administration costs, directors’ emoluments, impairment
loss on deposit paid, changes in fair values of derivative
financial instruments and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

RAREBL B BRARELE -

EXFRERZABELBR(BR)KAY
KEINBES aL2EEH—RPER
A > D RR(ER)ENEE D BRI ER
BN REMEZXZRBERZETH
A (BE) - B EYGRIR Z B &
B PFREEXA  EEME  ENR
EZREBE  TEMBIAERAFEZ
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EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. HEBEHRE)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) SRk AREREZ)
The total reportable segment revenue can be reconciled A 2| EBRWA T EEE GBS R EMm
to the revenue as presented in consolidated statement of EEWERP Y H AR AEITEIR - 20
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: TRR -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Total reportable segment revenue A E2moERUA 19,060,343 27,791,913
Add: Revenue from property dealing o FEMERZ RER L
and development in the PRC WA 119,500 —
19,179,843 27,791,913
The Group has a subsidiary engaged in the property dealing AEBZ —HEBRARNRP R EYE
and development in the PRC and the revenue generate RPRER  WEEBMEEHKAD
from this business is included as the consolidated revenue BRARSENLGES KA - 5 E2019
of the Group. There was no property sold for the year F1I2A3IALEFESTEEHEEMAY
ended 31 December 2019. The operating result and other ¥oMBARIz EXEERE MM
financial information of this subsidiary are not included in BRVEBAEREREFLEETELE
the segment reporting by the CODM for the purpose of RREBEH  UWEERD IERKRFT

resources allocation and performance assessments. 1t ©



Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating segment:

Segment assets

SHBEHE)

NERERAR

DHEE

2020 2019

S

UTRREENREZASBEERA
BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Sales and distribution of LPG HE kD RILR 3,524,464 4,122,900
Sales and distribution of NG HE M DHRAR 18,545 47,549
Oil products business JH h TS 4,270,158 7,676,846
Sales of electronic products HEETEM 362,416 456,622
Total segment assets WA EE 8,175,583 12,303,917
Deferred tax assets FEEF S EE 878 821
Pledged bank deposits BHEMIRITHER 385,129 360,218
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 873,742 2,288,684
Derivative financial instruments PTETKT A 13,775 6,606
Properties under development for sales fF&E3E MY 1,118,570 766,253
Properties held for sales FEFEWE 20,000 146,841
Other unallocated assets EMARDEEE 1,235,191 798,846
Consolidated assets HEEBE 11,822,868 16,672,186
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment liabilities

SERHEE)
PWRERARE)

DEAR

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Sales and distribution of LPG HE KD BRIER 292,673 717,687
Sales and distribution of NG HE KD RKAR - 5,576
Oil products business ViR E i 212,110 676,065
Sales of electronic products HEBTEM 114 114
Total segment liabilities BoEAaE 504,897 1,399,442
Derivative financial instruments PTHETKT A 25,180 9,787
Tax liabilities HEaE 108,813 117,100
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFR TS B E 15,185 64,280
Borrowings (R 6,620,843 7,054,410
Other unallocated liabilities EMARpEaE 90,947 53,043
Consolidated liabilities REAaE 7,365,865 8,698,062

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable segments
(other than deferred tax assets, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, derivative financial
instruments, certain deposits paid, certain other
receivables, properties under development for sales,
properties held for sales and certain property, plant
and equipment); and

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
(other than current and deferred tax liabilities,
borrowings, derivative financial instruments and
certain other payables).

The Group has allocated goodwill to the relevant segments
as segment assets.

oif g

REZESBRALRR BB EERM

MBEEDNNEZ2H/DB(RE
W EE - CEMBITER - R]IT
M kRe  TEMBIA BT
BEfEE - HTHEMEEKIER
EERRTYE %—?ﬁﬁ’%%%&”
TR - a8 RRBERIL)

BERBEDNAEZE 2% D R(EIH
FEERBAE - B3R TE8H
TARETEMREMRERSIN)

AEECREEIRERREIRERD
BEE -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Amounts included in the measure of
segment loss or segment assets:

Addition to non-current assets (Note)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Loss on disposal and written off of
property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses on
— trade receivables and other
recelvables

— goodwill and other intangible assets

— deposits paid and prepayment

— right-of-use assets

— Property, plant and equipment
Write down of inventories

AENEBRINRAERA
LEE:

REXRYRE W)
0% BERRELNE

EREREZAE
R EVAEES
HERMENR - BER
RELER
AEER
- BREZESREER
WA
- BERAMEVAR
- BNRERENE
- ERELE
- % BERER
T

Sales and
distribution

of LPG
HER
ARALR
HK$000
FET

145,206

88,783
12,262
22,898

10,221

177,303
368,364
4,000
14,000

Sales and
distribution
of NG
HER
FHERR
HK$'000
FET

SE-BEER |

SEEHEZ)
Htt &
EHF2020F 12831 AILEE
Oil Sales of
products electronic
business products  Unallocated Consolidated
0e
HEEE RTER 3L 8
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
17,358 - 546,561 709,125
42,443 - 456 131,682
48,284 - 9,669 70,215
17,122 - - 40,020
112,580 - - 122,801
591,641 20,000 352,000 1,140,944
422,022 - - 790,386
649,000 - 178,000 827,000
21,000 - - 31,000
70,000 - - 84,000
- 349,000 - 349,000
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. HEBEHRE)
Other segment information (Continued) Htt3FEIE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHFE2019F 12531 HILEE
Sales and Sales and Qil Sales of
distribution ~ distribution products electronic
of LPG of NG business products  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
HER HER HE
MERLR  ABRAR BRER ETER AR FA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAT FEr AT AT AT
Amounts included in the measure of SEAERRABEER A
segment profit or segment assets: pkix B
Addition to non-current assets (Note) REERBEEW L) 33,818 - 505,100 - 56,726 595,644
Addition of goodwil REWE 32,108 - - - - 32,108
Depreciation of property, plant and 0% BERZENE
equipment 100,684 = 50,177 = 780 151,641
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FPREZENE 14,045 - 34,357 - 9,486 57,888
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ EtEHEERRE 23,050 - 17,120 - - 40,170
Loss (gain) on disposal and written off of ~ HERHENE  RERREZ
property, plant and equipment BR(FE) 29,107 = (18.804) - = 10,303
Gain on deemed disposal of a joint HRALE-FAE0EME
venture (9,218) - - - - (9,218)
Impairment losses on HEESE
— trade receivables - ERESER - - 8,000 - - 8,000

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. Hiit FEREBEETBIREETIBEE -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong
Kong (country of domicile), Macau, Singapore, Malaysia
and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on shipment destination.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is
presented based on the geographical location of the
assets:

SERHEE)
ih I |

AEBZREEBIBZURER(EE
LEME)  BPT - BN - BRED:
KB o

AEBINBEFPBABHABY B Wt
20 ARBEFRBEEZERNNEE
IR E2IT

Revenue from Non-current assets
external customers (Note a)

FRENEE

SrEBERBA (Htita)

2020

2019 2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET FRETT FETL
Hong Kong (country of BERE(ETELEMRE)

domicile) 2,055,445 4,595,379 128,724 681,761
The PRC (excluding Hong FE(TEIERS)

Kong) 12,419,544 13,532,008 2,963,676 3,642,232
Singapore SIS 3,467,633 6,859,173 86,617 150,636
Other countries (Note b) HMBIR(AZb) 1,237,221 2,805,353 2,549 3,567
Total At 19,179,843 27,791,913 3,181,566 4,478,196
Notes: Hrezt

(a) Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

(o)  Other countries represented mainly other countries in the
Asia Pacific (excluding Singapore), United States and Kenya.

@ FRBEETBRRECHEEE -

(o) EHMBEREBRKRTAME(CTBEN
) - EEREE -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two customers
(2019: None) contributed over 10% of the total sales of the
Group.

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as
follows:

DEEHE)

EREEERZEH
REZE2020F 12 A1 HIEFERN © &
#2019 B)RFERIASEHE B
10% LA EZ WA

INTEFEMAEEEEARRE10% A £
ZUWA

2020 2019

ol JH B
Customer A ZEA
Customer B =FB

*

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group.

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
2,098,258 N/A*
@A

2,026,348 N/A*
TEA*

- HHEU A B AL BB AT BT
E10% °
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7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND OTHER 7.
INCOME

SE-BEER |

HtFrERIGRREMUTA

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&iT FET
Net loss on disposal and written off of — H& RisE P « #E LR
property, plant and equipment and R EMEE 2 BB TR
other assets (122,801) (10,303)
Changes in fair values of derivative PTEM T A RATE 2 e
financial instruments (124,780) 9,561
Gain on deemed disposal of a joint WHRAHE—REEDEM
venture (note 35(ii) 15 (K1t 35(i) - 9,218
Net exchange gain (loss) PE HORREPTIS (B1E) 162,923 (49,330)
Other losses Hith g8 (84,658) (40,854)
Interest income for financial assets at RS AT ENEIIEEE
amortised costs FEMA 69,715 20,697
Income from provision of transportation 28 & R 75~ Y A
services 10,760 11,305
Government subsidy R AT B 9,921 2,495
Rental income HEWA 58,860 12,063
Others HAftb 19,346 15,890
Other income E YA 168,602 62,450
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EZ2020F 12 A31 HIEFE
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WMBERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Interests on bank trust receipts loans RITEEUIR B R EAM
and other loans BRZHE 115,072 154,949
Interests on bank loans pledged with AARERITFHER 2
RMB bank deposits &R AE 12,866 10,149
Interests on other bank borrowings H A ER1T & 5 S 146,601 185,167
Interests on lease liabilities HESEFE 8,167 8,220
282,706 358,485
9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TRADE AND OTHER 9. BEEZEFRREMEBIRIEZR
RECEIVABLES {HEE - MRED
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Impairment losses recognised on: EHERBEERE
Trade receivables FEW B 5 8RR 746,944 8,000
Other receivables H i U BR X 394,000 —
1,140,944 8,000

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 36. ARG 2 FEIBE &AM FE36 °
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of taxation (credit)/ charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents:

10. FifRIEZH

RizaBaMEMEEKRERAGIA)
Mz HIBSERIE

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Current tax B EATH 18

Hong Kong B 354 11,499
Other regions in the PRC Fh B L b 3 &R 6,138 24,459
6,492 35,958

Over provision in respect of prior years &7t F S HREERE
Hong Kong B8 (2,466) —
4,026 35,958

Deferred tax (note 34) EIERLIR (A7 34)
Current year REFEA (50,962) (15,853)
(46,936) 20,105

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
a qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits
of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from 2018, the Hong Kong Profits Tax
of a qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the
first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and
at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

20183 H21H ' BB EZHEBT
2017 EMBUERT (BT ) GOl B R
(MEBIER]) - ZIEHNERSIATERE
FISFRESE - ZERN20184F 3 A
28AEERABERE W XRBERR
FZE - RELEFSHHE  2BEHKE
EERNE2H BB THEEIEs.25%
B - mEEB2 A 8B T ERIZAER
16.5% B o TR & EEF S H LG
ERMSEERNFESESELZ16.5% K
B E TR R BE o

Eik - #2018 F - fEREEER
BB METIRGFTERVRT A E2
BEEBILIZ8.25%:TH - MihFT R
MAERE2 B EABTTIE16.5% A H °
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both year, except for certain
subsidiaries which qualified as Small Low-Profit Enterprise
in PRC and entitled to a concessionary tax rate at 5%.

The Group’s subsidiaries established in Macao, other
than those holding an offshore company license which are
exempted from paying Complementary Tax (Profit Tax)
under Decree-Law No. 58/99/M (Macao Offshore Regime),
are taxed at 12% on the estimated assessable profits for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group’s subsidiaries established in Singapore are
taxed at 17% on the estimated assessable profits for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of Bermuda and the British Virgin Islands for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

10. FiRRIAZH (&)

RPEARKMBERMAEHOE(E
EMBBED REEMBHIAE K
Bl PEMBARMEERZIRER
26% ° A TESTE/NABMEXER
KB AR R 5 5% M EBHEERI -

AEBERPKINHBEAR  BRiFE
B = N A R R EY B B A B AR 15 55 58/99/
MIRESCRFIBEFSIE) 2B ma B
(R o HZE = 2020512 A 31 H
20194 12 A 31 B I F[E A {51 R
Fiim A 12% BB R BF -

AR BRI ALK B A BIREE
20204 12 A31 H %2019 12 A31H
I FE R AR RS 17 % B

#H £20205F 12 A31 H k2019 12 A
S1HIEFE  AEEEASNERER
EERZEEE NI AFHE o

b RPAEEREENRBIRBE DA
&=

A
EERMNBITHEH -
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EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income as

10. FRRMRIATH (&)
FABIAR] EERE

TFIR

follows:

85
R E RS AT (B R )& Z’“'J ??

S

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
(Loss) profit before taxation BrA A (E518) i A (3,762,832) 627,215
Tax at the domestic tax rate 25% WAL R 25% 58 2 B8 (940,708) 166,804
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ A% X 2 Fiig £
for tax purpose 1,007,672 113,474
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax /BT UL A 2 T 7557 2
purpose (98,901) (44,479)
Tax effect of profit which are exempted &8 F 2 i i5 2 &
from tax (135,999) (224,244)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERRIGE B 2 Fifs e 2 169,024 40,903
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAUHNRERMEER 2
differences not recognised o7 5,417 —
Utilisation of deductible temporary ) AR AR TR Z AT HR e
differences previously not recognised B =50 = (3,171)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not — BN RIRER 2 i EEE
recognised (15,109) (11,468)
Effect of different tax rate of group K%IZE’T’“%EAEP BILASNZ H
entities operating in jurisdictions other ~ MIEIR&EE 2 TR X 2
than PRC o (85,701) (7,549)
Income tax at concessionary rate REBBETRETE ZFREH (165) (165)
Over provision in respect of prior years @7t F[EHREERE (2,466) =
Taxation for the year ARFEFIA (46,936) 20,105

The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC

tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group

is substantially based is used.

Details of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are set out

in note 34.

enterprise income

P2 A B
%) -

BERERGEENAR

FRZRMEAREE T BEEHE &R
(BD AR B 1 S PTIS HRR

FHIEENFES4
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE
11. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11. BRRAT(EGIR)RF
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
(Loss) profit before taxation has been  BR#{AT(EE ) F 2 k%
arrived at after charging (crediting): (BT A)TFIIER -
Amortisation of other intangible assets E 2 & E# S (B 1E
(included in selling and distribution HE KD HZHA)
expenses) 40,020 40,170
Write down of inventories (included in & #4& (BB E
cost of sales) RAA) 349,000 —
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR BN &
— audit services — ERR% 3,400 3,800
— non-audit services — TR 400 1,617
3,800 5,317
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - MR RRETTE
equipment 131,682 151,641
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 70,215 57,888
Gross rental income from leasing of HEREREM RS
warehouses and oil vessels WA (58,860) (12,063)
Less: Direct operating expenses i BEEES 30,246 4,296
(28,614) (7,767)
Staff costs (3= IB%N
Directors’ fees (note 12) EEwe(WiF12) 390 390
Directors’ other emoluments SEHMME
(note 12) (Htet12) 7,188 10,425
Contributions to retirement benefits % 66,0007 7L (2019 :
schemes excluding HK$66,000 88,0007 EFTAE
(2019: HK$88,000) included in EME 2 BRIREFIET S
directors’ emoluments 3R 6,248 10,906
Staff salaries and bonus ETHe S 145,863 150,436
159,689 172,157
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

12,
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2019: 9)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

ual Report 2020 =—Z=ZTFFI{ |

12. EEREFETHARMSE

EAT BN T7A(2019 : 9 ) EE %

directors and chief executive were as follows: AZBE&aT :
2020
Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
4 L] BUkufTES
Siu
Ka Fai, Cheung Chan
Shum ~ Shum Chun, Brian  Kwan Hung, Yuk Wai, Xu
SiuHung  Lawrence (Mr. Siu) Anthony Benedict Mingshe
Bxi
) | (&%) ] [ J3] fhait
HKS'000 HKS$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note g)
(hite)
Fees e - - - - 150 120 120 390
Other emoluments Efhis
Salaries and other benefts e bR 3,000 960 1470 1,692 - - - 712
Contributions to refirement benefts scheme ~ RIFER[3f2 18 18 18 12 - - - 66
Total emoluments Heas 3,018 978 1,488 1,704 150 120 120 1578
2019
Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
GEE BUIHNES
Chiu
Sing Chung, Wang  Cheung Chan
Shum - Shum Chun, Cen Raymond Jan KwanHung,  Yuk Wa, Xu Total
SuHung  Lawrence Ziniu Mr.Su  (Mr.Chiy) (Mr.Wang  Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe 2019
#Ra il fif
2)% 28 2tr BRE (ERED) (FfE)  RB% ReE #4r 2019
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
fhr  fEr Tt i TEr fEr fEr T TEr TEn
(noteb) ~(notec)
(W) (o)
Fees e = = - - - - 150 120 120 390
Other emoluments 0]
Selaries and ofher benets EEREMEN 3000 ff0 1805 220 1740 58 - - - 108
Contrbutions to refirement RRHEEER
Denefits scheme 18 18 18 18 8 8 - - - 8
Total emoluments Hesg 3018 1138 1,623 2,308 1,748 590 150 120 120 10815
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S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  The disclosed emoluments of Mr. Siu represents the
emoluments received and receivable before his resignation
on 23 August 2020.

(o)  The disclosed emoluments for Mr. Chiu represents the
emoluments received and receivable before his retirement on
5 June 2019.

(c) The disclosed emoluments for Mr. Wang represents the
emolument received and receivable before his resignation on
1 October 2019.

No director or chief executive waived any emoluments
during both years.

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration
shown above were mainly for their services as director of
the Company.

Mr. Shum Siu Hung is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

12.

EFERERTHRARME(Z)

@ HEANE BRI RN 2020
4 8 5 23 BBHIATE W R AE I OB -

(b) HEELEMEHBEHFHMIIARERN 2019
F6 A 5 BRRATE WK E KR FB -

() FEEEMEHEBEFHMIIRKER2019
10 A1 BEHT A2 R BRI B o

RRFATEEEREEMTHE -

BB CHTESHE T BN RS
EEARARANEEERZ R -

PR EZ B ERTEEHETER
REFER/REARRES 2R °

S DA ETREARAZ EEZTHA
CHE PR BEZHMEERREERAT
TTRA B ARt 2 IR %% ©

Wel m W
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included three directors (2019: three directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 12. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2019: two)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

13.

EEM&

FRAGSERRHTATBIEIMNES
(2019 : BRI EE) ' HMES B H MK
12 « HEAFEAMNAL(2019 : 207 ) &K & ¥
ATHEFRREAABNESZTHEZITRA
8 HEemT :

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and allowances Fre MoERh 3,978 4,435
Contributions to retirement benefits RIRBHFT 2R

scheme 36 36

4,014 4,471

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within

the following bands is as follows:

YHRARBESTZRRFALTHMES
FFUATEE :

2020 2019

Their emoluments were within the
following bands

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

HE & F AT EE

1,500,001 & 2,000,000 7 7T
2,000,001 & 2,500,000 7 7T
2,500,001 & 3,000,000 77T

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or the above individual as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

14. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during 2020, nor had any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2019:

HKS$nil).

AREEY J|AEFK AR AL
e ERBFEMAIMALEER
ZEE > SERRERLL 2 FE -

B2
A 2020 6 A & [ A A A E B A2 Y
REEFEBRERE  BBERS

HAR » IR 25 sk Bk IR B E R AR B
(2019 : ££) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

EZ2020F 12 A31 HIEFE

15. BASIC (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. SREX(5E)EF
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share KRBl 2B ANEEESREREE)E
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the FTHIR T 5 Bt E

following data:

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000
TFEIT FEIT
(Loss) earnings (BR)2H
(Loss) earnings for the purposes of STEFRER(EE)ZF
basic (loss) earnings per share ((loss) FrER Az () BFI (KA
profit for the year attributable to the AR AREFEAN(ER)
owners of the Company) &) (3,558,546) 642,175
2020 2019
Number of shares Bir& B
Weighted average number of ordinary st & G IREAR(EE) B
shares for the purpose of basic (loss) Fr R A 2 2 38 A% N
earnings per share FHEH8 1,468,124,216 1,468,124,216
No diluted (loss) earnings per share is presented as there R B £ 20204F & 2019F 12 A31H Ik
are no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years Hiff - AR F AR EITEERD i)

ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. m 25| G REE(FE) &7 -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 3 - BB RRE

Pumpsand  Furniture,
Gasandoil  equipment fixtures
Construction Leasehold ~ Plantand  plantand for gas and Motor

inprogress  Buildings improvements  machinery facilites andoil  equipment vehicles
#ER ARG
BRI ¥ FB  BEREE  RERBN  WRRER bl |

SE-BEER |

Qil
vessels

ik

HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO0  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO00
7T AT .73 iz 73 AT FET T 7T AT FET
(oSt i
At 1 January 2019 R019E1R1A 542,880 40,39 15,238 3061 1,561,639 34200 22,660 62,033 623962 3266580
Acquistion on acquistion of )

a subsidiary (note 35) 103 409 - - 3159 578 2 197 - 4 467
Addtions 76,731 - 736 - 1803 6,627 1511 4808 4851 97,067
Disposels and write-off (2,064) - - - (25,046) (t0.490) (765 6,915 Bado (7
Exchange realignment (28,626) %8 )] 1] (15,087) (7.784) (135) 682 8,625) (67,208)
At 31 Decemoer 2019 Ra19E12A31A 504,064 30,876 16,903 2091 1,526,468 33,158 2,292 57,701 565,004 3,189,132
Addtions AE 307,719 1526 m 4] 124472 5,03 2,649 2210 - 450,175
Disposels and wrie-off nE R = - (188) - (54,901) (51,617) (139) (659) (152300 (266,484
Exchange realignment Eidg 4,07 3,223 200 209 13811 17947 1,148 232 14763 154,708
At 31 Decemoer 2020 RnE12A31A 942,030 50,625 16,002 343 1,669,850 315,366 26,356 55,702 8057 3,528,131
DEPRECIATION AND fERAE

IMPARVENT
At 1 January 2019 R019E1R1A - 27153 10946 149 43733 %1319 17411 39,464 76,958 848,660
Provided for the year EffE = 2183 2334 194 70,250 30,299 3,163 6,921 %1 191,641
Eiminated on disposalsand 1A ERA R

rg-off - - - - (18071) (20,565) (130 (£321) 6428) (30,118}
Exchange realignment Bz - (666) (13 (%) (7,50 (901 (29) 677) (1,33 (15:428)
At 31 December 2019 R019F 127318 - 2,650 13,265 1614 488407 26,112 19,548 4,387 104975 934958
Provided for the year FhEE - 2,983 2,662 158 75,764 16,376 1,792 4312 575 131,682
Eiminated on disposdlsand AR ERA AR

rte-off - - (188) - (20,667) (36,816) () (6,199) (39,799 (104,385
Ipaiment oss ecognised - ERNEREDHBEE

in proft orloss - - - - 6,000 7,000 - 1,000 70,000 84,000
Exchange realignment EfsE - 2,28 (584) 121 2152 13,306 3 848 2884 )
At 31 December 2020 Ro0E12R%18 - 34,808 15,15 1,893 574030 25978 21,004 41,409 165635 1,089,972
GARRYING VALUES i
At 31 Decemoer 2020 #nE12A31A 942930 15,757 87 1350 1,005,820 79,388 5,352 14293 842 243,159
At 31 December 2019 R019E12R31A 504,064 10,226 2,6%8 131 1,038,061 107,041 3144 16,314 480709 2,204,174
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The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum.

Buildings Over the term of the lease

Leasehold improvements 20% to 33'/,%

Plant and machinery 4% to 33"/;%

Gas and oil plant and Over the shorter of the lease term
facilities of coast use right and land use

right, or 25 years

Pumps and equipment  10% to 33"/,%
for gas and oil

Furniture, fixtures and ~ 15% to 16°/3%

equipment
Motor vehicles 16°/:% to 33"/,%
Oil vessels 3% to 11%

The buildings of HK$15,757,000 (2019: HK$10,226,000)
are situated outside Hong Kong, in the PRC.

The gas and oil plant under construction of HK$84,686,000
(2019: HK$74,402,000) are situated outside Hong Kong, in
the PRC.

As at 31 December 2020, oil vessels with carrying values
of approximately HK$83,184,000 (2019: HK$89,880,000)
have been pledged as security for bank borrowings (note
32).

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S PR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Pk - WEBRRME (L)

BREZTRIN - LilihE  #ERRE
HAB - TR TINFHERABRENE

B ZFA A F 5P
TAEMEEE 20% % 33"/:,%
B8 K 5 4% % 33"'/,%
REMBERS REFFERER LT
i {55 FARERA 49 F Hi sk
25 FH v B
REAmZ 10% £ 33"/,%
RERRHEME
R EEBR  15% E16%,%
B
B 16°/:% % 33'/,%
ik 3% % 11%

15,757,000 7£(2019 : 10,226,000 7
TC) BEF I A B (BB IRIN) ©

84,686,000 7t (2019 : 74,402,000/%
JC) R TER RE ROME DR A B (B S
B[HN) o

M2020F 12 A31H > R E & 4
83,184,000 7£(2019 : 89,880,000
T0) KB A E R R E R R 1T 8 B A9
m (PfisE82) °
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EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

16. M¥ - WBREMW(Z)

Impairment testing on property, plant and equipment

The following table shows the impairment provision on
property, plant and equipment of relevant CGUs and the
segments to which the CGUs belong:

TR - #ER B iz ik (E A sl

TRETHBYE  BEhEBREE
EBEUZRERBRRCELEMAE

ZO8

Sales and (o]}

distribution products
of LPG business Total
31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2020 2020

HERSH

MEw HEER e
2020 5 2020 5 2020 %
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FETT TFETT
CGUA REEEBMA 14,000 - 14,000
CcGU2 HEeEABMN2 - 70,000 70,000
14,000 70,000 84,000

For the year ended 31 December 2020, an impairment
provision of HK$84,000,000 (2019: Nil) is made. The Group
determined the recoverable amount of the oil vessels
based on the vessels’ fair values less costs of disposal,
using market comparison approach by reference to recent
sales prices of similar assets within the same industry,
adjusted for differences such as remaining useful lives.
Accordingly the carrying amount of the vessels was written
down to their recoverable amount of HK$282,422,000
with an impairment loss of HK$70,000,000 recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The fair value on which the
recoverable amount is based on is categorised as a Level
3 measurement. The remaining impairment provision
of HK$14,000,000 is related to the property, plant and
equipment of a LPG bottling plant in Shenzhen, which is
under a lawsuit which may lead to discontinuance of the
business operation in the near future, and the recoverable
amount of such assets based on value in use are
approximately HK$Nil.

HE2020F12 A31 HILFEE - EEH
84,000,000 7T (2019 : £ ) Ky il (B B
e 2 MYMGLHBARITXREE
ENHEEER  BENSKEASHEE
BT - AEEREE MR IR E
SREERMMORFEREHERRK -
At MM EEEEREEATKRE S
¥0282,422,0008 7T © BRABENEM
fRE W R B ERIRE A8 70,000,000
Bwe A BB AFENDIERS
MEZEZMZ2REM - FpBE
14,000,000 7 7T Al B2 R I & b 5 78 IR R
ZWE - WBERZERE - ZaIAMIE
E¥EFFA  WRAIAE S BHUR IERIRA
BEBARBFEREBENE  ZEEE
R AU Bl S EEX) ATBTT o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EHRERE

Gas and
oil plant
Leasehold and (o]]

lands Coastline Buildings facilities vessels
RER
AR B BF AERRNE L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAT AT FAT AT TET

As at 31 December 2020 #202051A 1A
Carrying amount FREE 372,942 3,960 3,374 47,114 34,206 461,596

As at 31 December 2019 #2019 12A 318

Carrying amount REE 416,879 4,420 2,039 61,016 75,132 559,486
For the year ended #E2020F12A31R
31 December 2020 LEE
Depreciation charge wEZ 16,670 721 2,292 7,603 42,929 70,215
For the year ended #E2019F12A31A
31 December 2019 LLEE
Depreciation charge REXH 16,972 775 1,603 9,019 29,519 57,888
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F&T
Expense relating to short-term leases ER BAFE EMERE 2 S 74,262 83,089
Total cash outflow for leases (Note 1) — HER SR @%E (KM 1) 59,126 133,514
Additions to right-of-use assets NEEREEE

(Note 2) (Kizx2) 12,143 40,481
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F 12 A 31 HIFFE
17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Note 1: Amount includes payments of principal and interest
portion of lease liabilities, short-term leases and payments
of lease payments on or before lease commencement
date (including leasehold lands). These amounts was
presented in operating, investing or financing cash flows.

Note 2: Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new
leases entered, business combination, lease modification,
reassessment/exercise of extension/termination options,
payments for leasehold land, excluding those classified as
investment properties.

For both years, the Group leases offices, leasehold land,
coast, building, gas and oil plant and facilities, oil vessels
and LPG stations for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 13 months to 15 years (2019:
13 months to 15 years). Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for
all leasehold lands except for leasehold lands with a total
carrying amount of approximately HK$170,165,000 (2019:
HK$169,521,000) for which the Group is in the process of
obtaining.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
offices, oil vessels, leasehold land and LPG stations. As
at 31 December 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases
committed is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases
entered for which the short-term lease expense was
disclosed as above.

17.

ERERE=E)

Kzt -
DRI BHAEUARAERA
B zpmBAENR(BERE L
) e ZECHEAIELE  REKR
BEEREFET -

Btz 2BEERFIHEE  £%4

Bt - EBK - BTG TET

R biEEE  AE TR

MEANERELSE  T2ESHE

AIREEEHENEE -

EREFEF  AEBEHHEENRAE -
et - BF BF I[EHER
B R RBRIE R ETTEE - FRa]
HEAHNETEHRAI1SEAZI5F
(2019 : 13 A E 154 ) - HEIEHKY
RE@ERIE R HEEE  HPeasiE
TRMGER G - AEBEEREEHE
HARR AP E T Al BUGE R HAR S - KA A
49 H) TE = W HETE A %Y ] 58 Hl 1T A HB
fR o

AREBEBESMAREE L H B
M - (BEIRMEE /170,165,000 7T
(2019 : 169,521,000 7T ) K Fl & + #b
BRAN o

AEBTEHARAT « B R R
ST EHAFRE - R 2020F12 A31H -
ERGEHNEPHEREHESE Pl ATE
EMNEHHES LY RNEBHAER
EHEMBM -
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B E 2020 12 A 31 AIEFE
18. GOODWILL 18. W&
HK$’000
FEIT
COST DN
At 1 January 2019 R201941 A1 8 742,051
Exchange realignment PE 5 (7,186)
Arising on acquisition of a business through BRBA—REGEEERNEIMNER
purchase of additional interest in a joint W i — TH 375 T B A
venture (note 35) (#12£35) 32,108
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 A 766,973
Exchange realignment M 5 A% 20,372
At 31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 B 787,345
IMPAIRMENT BB
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 201941 A1 HK2019412 A31 A
Impairment recognised in the year FNERIRIE 642,481
At 31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 A 642,481
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 720204 12 A 31 A 144,864
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A 31 H 766,973
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out RERNEmS  EXEH I EEE S
above has been allocated to eleven (2019: eleven) individual FRE11E(2019 : 11@) EEEE RS
CGUs, comprising various subsidiaries in segments ERItR R MY EETEZ EN B AT
in relation to the sales and distribution of LPG and oil ERIIRESELEEEN -
products segment.
The list of CGU for which the carrying amount of goodwill is ENMBERERENBEZRESES

significant has been allocated to is as follows: BAEET
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EE2020F 12 5 31 HI-FZE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. W& (&)

Impairment testing on goodwill mEZRENR

Goodwill by CGUs after impairment BEELEREESTE
Segment o8 0] 2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET
CGU3 LPG R